A New Strategy... for a New Era

Annual Report

Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques
King Salman Bin Abdulaziz Al Saud

His Royal Highness
Prince Mohammed Bin Salman Bin Abdulaziz Al Saud
Crown Prince, Deputy Premier and Minister of Defense

A Journey of
Achievements &
Vision
Since its establishment in 1986, Tawuniya has played a pioneering role
in Saudi Arabia's insurance sector. In fact, throughout 30 years, the
company was able to substantially raise its competitiveness and improve
the quality of its services to become the number one insurance company
in the kingdom. Acting as an innovative leader, Tawuniya drafted a new
growth strategy in 2017, one that builds on Vision 2030's expected
economic developments and opportunities and paves the way to a new
phase in the insurance market. This strategy is coupled with a unique
vision, an inspiring mission, and customer-focused values.

Our Vision

Sustain momentum for our
society’s safety and continuous
progress towards the future.

Our Mission
Be the companion that presents innovative
and customer centric insurance solutions,
so our customers feel secure, empowered
and ready for the future.
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We work together to achieve our customers' best
interest and join efforts to grant them our utmost
attention. We're highly responsive to their demands
and cater to their needs with respect and courtesy.

Attention

Respect

Responsiveness

COLLABORATION
Unity

Courtesy
Service
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We are very optimistic that the Company will be able to surpass this stage and achieve

outstanding results in the coming period

Dear Shareholders,
H.E. Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Chairman

I present to you the 31st Annual Report of
Tawuniya Insurance Company, including the
Board of Directors’ report, the Auditors’ report
and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31/12/2017 and notes to the
financial statements.
The year 2017 has witnessed an increase in the
number of medical insurance claims, resulting in
a rise by 33% in the net claims incurred. This was
accompanied by a commitment by Tawuniya to
the recommendation of the Actuary and the
increase of the additional technical reserves
that would enable the Company to increase
its ability to meet the future obligations,
taking into account the solvency standards in
accordance with the statutory requirements.
Consequently, shareholders’ operations were
affected by these changes, with a loss of SAR
146.5 million. Such loss is mainly attributable to
a deficit of insurance operations of SAR 368.2
million. Therefore, the Board of Directors has
decided neither to distribute a reward to the
Board Members nor to the members of the
Executive Management, knowing that what
is mentioned in the tables within the report is
deferred bonuses for previous years, except
the Investment Division, for the outstanding
performance of the investment portfolio of the
Company.
However, Tawuniya has achieved a number of
positive indicators in its financial results, the
most important of which was the increase in
gross written premiums to SAR 8.4 billion in
2017 compared to SAR 8.1 billion in 2016 with
a growth rate of 4.4%. Therefore, Tawuniya
achieved the largest market share in the
Saudi insurance sector. The medical insurance
operations also grew by 10%. Total revenue has
increased by 7% to SAR 7.5 billion compared
to SAR 7 billion in 2016. Total assets remained
almost the same as in the previous year at SAR
13.4 billion.

The investment policy of the Company achieved
a remarkable return on investments during
2017 as the investments of the policyholders
generated a net income of SAR 221.5 million
compared to SAR 90.5 million in 2016, up
by 144.8%. Investments of Shareholders’
operations also generated a net income of SAR
226.5 million in 2017 compared to SAR 111.6
million in 2016, up 103%.
In 2017, Tawuniya won a number of prestigious
awards and ratings, including the highest credit
rating in the Saudi insurance market for the 12th
consecutive year from Standard & Poor’s (A-)
and stable outlook. Tawuniya won the award of
the best insurance company in the GCC from
Finance World magazine, the best corporate
insurance solutions provider in Saudi Arabia
from the British CFI.CON magazine, and ranked
first in the list of insurers and reinsurers in the
Middle East which issued by Al Bayan magazine.
Tawuniya has been selected as one of the top
100 companies in the Arab world issued by
Forbes Middle East magazine and ranked among
the top 20 brands in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia by Brandz.
We look at the results of 2017 as an exceptional
step in Tawuniya journey. We are very optimistic
that the Company will be able to surpass
this stage and achieve outstanding results
in the coming period. In 2017, the Company
has developed a new strategy that will lead
the growth in the next stage according to a
distinguished vision, inspirational mission and
values upscale the customer service.

Tawuniya has already begun to manage its new strategy to achieve
target growth rates and invest the promising opportunities in the light
of the economic developments expected to the Saudi Vision 2030 while
maintaining the Company’s outstanding credit rating, consolidating its
leadership position in the Saudi insurance market, improving the efficiency
of its investment portfolio and enhancing returns, as well as reduction of
operational costs and improvement of collection mechanisms.
To achieve these strategic objectives and in order to upgrade the services
offered to customers, Tawuniya restructured the sales and marketing
divisions. The sales teams were divided into three segments: corporate
& key accounts, SMEs and retail. IT strategy and transformation plan
have been adopted, allowing for the expansion of the use of modern
technologies to keep pace with the future expectations of customers.
In addition, the Company implemented several plans and initiatives in
2017 that contributed to improving the operations, enhancing the values
targeting all sectors of customers, expanding e-commerce sales, enhancing
technical and management capabilities of human resources, facilitating
claims procedures and processes, and expanding the implementation of
customer loyalty programs, as well as the activation of social responsibility
programs.
In this context, Tawuniya emphasized the concepts of creativity, innovation
and development by launching new insurance programs in 2017, especially
those for the SME sector, with continuous updating of the information
systems to enhance performance and improve the quality of service. The
Company also succeeded in attracting major insurance contracts along
with full compliance with regulations and instructions issued by the
regulators.

As the insurance market moves towards maturity stage which is witnessing
more legislative regulation, competition is growing stronger. At the
same time, Tawuniya is working hard to capitalize on the promising
opportunities resulting from the economic developments in the Kingdom
and those accompanying to the issuance of new legislation allowing the
entry of segments of society under the umbrella of insurance, including the
decision to allow women to drive cars in the Kingdom, which will enter into
force in mid-2018. This decision will add significant growth opportunities
in the motor insurance sector, which are gradually increasing in the near
term.
We, at the Board of Directors, support the Executive Management of
the Company to continue its direction to carry out comprehensive
development and restructure the vital sectors and strategic business units,
which is one of the main factors for future growth, while, at the same time,
developing staff skills and expanding the implementation of Saudization
programs.
In conclusion, I would like to thank all the Shareholders of the Company
for their high confidence. We also promise you that the Company’s
management and all its employees will do their best to improve
performance indicators during 2018.

Soliman Saad Al-Humayyd
Chairman

We go the extra mile to offer our customers quality
services, and pay attention to the slightest details to
guarantee the best benefits at the lowest cost.

Extra Mile

Service

Details

Benefits

New

Best
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H.E. Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Chairman

Mr. Waleed A. Al-Eisa
Vice - Chairman

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki
Director

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al Nowaiser
Director

Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Khamis
Director

Mr. Jasser A. Al- Jasser
Director

We diligently create products and services that
comply with the best quality and excellence
standards. Our actions are guided by clearly and
carefully-set objectives as well as by our commitment
to all regulations and by laws.

Create
Accuracy

Diligence

Commitment

MASTERY
Quality
Clarity

Excellence
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The 2017 Board of
Directors’ Report
Introduction
The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company for Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya) has the pleasure of presenting our shareholders with the 31st
Annual Report, comprising of the company’s most significant regulatorybased plans, decisions, operational activities, financial results and disclosures.
The audited financial statements and their notes for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2017 accompany the report.
1- Distinctive awards and ratings in 2017:
••

Realization of the best credit rating in the Saudi insurance market for
the twelfth year consecutively by Standard & Poor’s (S&P) which has
assigned Tawuniya an ‘A-’ rating with “stable’ outlook in 2017.

••

Tawuniya was chosen the best insurance company in the Gulf
countries by Finance World Magazine.

••

Tawuniya was selected as the best corporate insurance solutions
provider in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by (CFI.CO) British Magazine.

••

Tawuniya topped the list of insurance and reinsurance companies in
the Middle East issued by Al Bayan magazine.

••

Tawuniya was selected amongst the Top 100 companies in the Arab
world issued by Forbes Middle East magazine.

••

Tawuniya was chosen among the top 20 Brands in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia issued by Brandz.

••

The CEO of Tawuniya was chosen among the top 100 CEOs in the GCC
countries pursuant to the list of Global “Trends” magazine.

2- Evaluation of the company’s strategy and its position in financial
terms:
Since its incorporation in 1986, Tawuniya has been a leading player in the
Saudi insurance sector. Over the past 30 years, the Company has been
able to enhance its competitiveness and quality of services, making it the
first insurance company in the Kingdom. To lead the real change in the
insurance market and to invest the promising opportunities in the light of
expected economic developments of the Kingdom 2030 Vision, Tawuniya
has developed a new strategy that will lead growth in the next phase
according to a distinct vision, inspirational mission and values that boost
customer service. The Company manages its strategy successfully, and this
has been reflected positively on the financial position of the company as
follows:

3- Description of Significant Plans, Decisions and Future Prospects of
the Company’s Business
a) Significant Plans and Decisions
••

Approval of the General Assembly to increase the Company’s paid up
capital from SR 1,000 million to SR 1,250 million by 25%.

••

Election of the members of the Board of Directors for the new session
which began on 26/03/2017 and ends on 25/03/2020.

••

Approval of the General Assembly to the Amended Articles of
Association of the Company to be consistent with the standard
Articles of Associations of the Insurance Companies issued by the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority.

••

Approval of the General Assembly to the formation of the Audit
Committee for the period from 26/03/2017 to 25/03/2020 as well as
the nomination of the Board member Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser in
the Audit Committee.

••

••

Adoption of the IT strategy and transformation plan, expansion
of the use of modern technologies to cope with future customer
expectations and the development of a framework to support the
comprehensive information security.
Restructuring the sales and marketing division, and dividing the sales
teams according to the customer three sectors namely corporate and
key accounts, small and medium enterprises (SME) and retail, in order
to upgrade the level of services provided to customers.

••

Development of the marketing strategy for the next five years, in
order to support the Company’s strategy and take advantage of the
opportunities available in light of the economic developments in the
Kingdom.

••

Approval of the 2018 business plan and budget.

••

Approval of the annual reinsurance strategy for the year 2016/2017.

b) Future Prospects of the Company Business
The future prospects of the Company business are based on the following
indicators:
••

Significant improvement in operations coupled with the completion
of the IT transformation plan.

••

Maintaining the credit rating assigned to the Company by Standard
& Poor’s.

••

Strengthening the values targeting all customer segments.

••

Expanding sales of e-commerce to keep abreast of modern
developments in communication technologies.

••

Strengthening technical capabilities and underwriting skills.

Improving the efficiency of investment portfolio and enhancing the
return on investment.

••

Improving and simplifying claims procedures and processes.

••

Work on the corporate social responsibility programs.

••

Realizing the targeted growth rates.

••

Expanding the implementation of customer loyalty programs.

••

Reducing operational costs and improve collection mechanisms.

••

Increasing the technical reserves to meet potential financial liabilities.

••

Maintain the credit rating of Standard & Poor’s at (A-) with “stable”
outlook.

••

Consolidating the leading position of the Company in the Saudi
insurance market.

••

The company has developed a new strategy that will lead growth in the next phase according to

a distinct vision, inspirational mission and values
that boost customer service

4- Description of Operating Activities During 2017

d) Corporate and Key Accounts Sales
The Key Accounts sector has undergone a material change in its
organizational structure in light of the new marketing strategy.
Accordingly, the main functions of Key Accounts have been modified to
include the corporate accounts under the name of Corporate and Key
Accounts Sales. In the light of this development, new initiatives have been
introduced for customers aiming at raising loyalty level and supporting
confidence in the quality of insurance products provided by Tawuniya. This
includes, for instance but not limited to, the introduction of the upgraded
version of the Employee Health Monitoring Program for a number of
key clients, customer satisfaction surveys on service quality and direct
relationship management as well as quarterly follow-up on the loss ratio
of some key clients and communication with them to improve the level of
risk measures. In addition, the Company has succeeded in selling insurance
products to a group of big companies to cover all risks (medical, motor
and general insurance) and has also improved the policy renewal ratio for
the key clients.

a) Medical Insurance and Takaful
The Company launched four medical insurance programs for small and
medium enterprises, updated medical insurance systems to enhance
performance, improve service quality, and develop medical claims systems.
At the same time, the electronic linking has been accomplished with most
medical service providers. The Company has contracted with a number
of hospitals affiliated to the Ministry of Health, expanded the network of
approved pharmacies, strengthened the procedures for issuing medical
approvals by transferring complex cases to specialized health centers
and improved the mechanism of dispensing medicines from pharmacies.
The company added to its smart fraud system new indicators to detect
fraudulent cases whether by service providers or insurance cardholders.
b) Motor insurance
Tawuniya applied the loyalty discount and no claim discount to motor
insurance customers, in response to SAMA instructions and developed
the suitable underwriting mechanisms that contributed to the
application process of these discounts. The corporate e-business system
was launched and a smart pricing tool was implemented that effectively
helped to determine the prices on a risk basis.

e) Small and Medium Enterprises Sales (SME)
SME Sales sector is created to realize the objectives of marketing
strategy, benefiting from the opportunities provided by SME
sector according to Saudi Arabia’s Vision 2030 and the National
Transformation Program 2020. The activity of this sector witnessed
the launch of the integrated SME 360° Insurance Program to insure
the small and medium enterprises. This Program provides insurance
coverage (Medical, Motor, Business) to meet all insurance needs from
one place, at reasonable prices and simplified mechanism that is
managed in an integrated manner by one insurance account manager.
The SME distribution channels have been extended to the various
business units together with initiatives being launched to increase
the awareness of SME owners on insurance products allocated for this
segment, such as the outstanding participation and the sponsorship of
Biban SME Forum - 2017.

The Company has succeeded in reducing the time limit for the TP claims.
It has also activated a monitoring system (Rassed System) with Najm
Insurance Services Company, which allows Tawuniya to recover its dues
with the other insurance companies. In addition, the Company managed
to fully activate the evaluation of the third party’s motor damage
through “Taqdeer centers” in Riyadh. The Agreement on the operation of
the outpost offices for insurance of foreign motor vehicles entering Saudi
territory has been renewed as well as the agreement with “Najm” for the
implementation of electronic linking, which allows the uploading of all
insurance policies issued at the borders offices.
(C) Property and Casualty
The Company has obtained the necessary approvals for the issuance
of six new products namely cyber insurance, residential fire insurance,
comprehensive office insurance, and three programs allocated for small
and medium enterprises, Tujjar, Sunnaa and Deyafa. To support the
relationship with property and casualty insurance customers, an additional
risk management consultancy service was provided through a specialized
consulting firm. An integrated analysis of the performance and prices of
six insurance programs has been prepared, and pricing and underwriting
recommendations have been issued in light of the analysis results. The
Company conducted an update of the electronic systems for the issuance
of quotations, insurance policies, endorsements and insurance certificates.
It organized seven technical workshops, prepared and monitored the risk
management system for reinsurance, property and casualty insurance and
updated the insurance policy documents to meet SAMA requirements.
Moreover, the Company prepared and evaluated the data collection
forms relating to the operations of reinsurance, property and casualty
insurance. One of the specialized companies has conducted a full review
of the reinsurance program of the Company to issue a recommendation
regarding the optimal retention ratio of reinsurance treaties with a view to
gradually increasing this ratio over the next five years.

f)

Retail Insurance and e-Commerce
A new structure has been adopted to retail sales sector to realize
greater customer care and attention. The Company restructured the
E-commerce Department and launched an integrated digital business
management aimed at exploiting and investing digital technologies in
sales and customer service. In this context, the new version of Tawuniya
Smartphone Application has been launched, which enables customers
to get a lot of services, as well as continuous improvement of the online
store to provide a better customer experience. The electronic insurance
card that the customer receives at any time and from anywhere has
been launched.

g) Marketing, Communication and Customer Service
The Company developed the structure of marketing sector to align
with the new strategic objectives and to be more focused on the three
main sales sectors (corporate and key accounts - small and medium
enterprises – retails business). The sector has implemented a series of
marketing campaigns targeting all customers, focusing on innovative
products such as the SME 360° Program, and business insurance
packages that include Tujjar, Sunnaa, Deyafa and Moqawiloon.
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A number of marketing initiatives have been implemented for retail
clients to provide additional services such as installment service,
loyalty and no claim discounts, special discounts for students,
marketing campaigns for international travel insurance and medical
malpractice insurance programs. The Company continued to provide
additional programs and services such as the “Health Zone” Program,
“Dawaee” service, “Health and Wellness” Program and sponsorship of
some events, notably the Biban Small and Medium Enterprises Forum.
Furthermore, two internal customer service initiatives were launched,
namely the Customer Experience Champions and the Call Center
Pioneers Competition to encourage employees to strive in serving the
customers and raise their loyalty to the Company.
h) Human resources and development of work environment
A number of recruitment activities and initiatives have been activated
in 2017. The Company participated in the “Career Day” at King Fahd
University of Petroleum and Minerals, the “ Insurance Companies
Recruitment Day” sponsored by SAMA and the “Glowork Women’s
Employment Initiative”. These events contributed to introducing the
Company’s opportunities and to attract distinguished professionals
from different disciplines. The Company also participated in the
“Your Job Your Scholarship” program launched by the Ministry of
Education to recruit candidates for specializations and jobs required
by the companies participating in the program, as well as to make
arrangements to benefit from the programs of insurance makers by
employing a group of graduates. Within the framework of the Talent
and Skills Development Plan, the Company organized a number of
training programs in various fields including management, technical and
anti-money laundering. Also the Company launched special training
programs such as the “Middle Management Development Program” as
well as the second session of “Fast Track Technical Insurance program”
(FIT2), which enables the Saudization of complex technical jobs by
ambitious graduates of the Saudi young generations.

The 2017 Board of Directors’ Report

i)

Information systems and technology
The Company launched the IT Transformation Program after reevaluating the infrastructure of this sector, developing a plan to
upgrade and adapt it to international best practices, and meet
business demands, with a comprehensive transformation to digital
work, thereby helping to develop operating process and deliver better
products and services. Thus, increasing customer satisfaction and
the Company’s distinction from the other competitors. The Company
also started using the digital platform and implementing some new
services, developing the existing services and reactivating them using
the digital platform to deliver better performance. A number of
applications and electronic systems have been issued and developed,
including the distribution of surplus to customers, the medical
reimbursement application and the electronic medical insurance
pricing mechanism, the improvement of Tawuniya online store and
the improvement of the visitors’ insurance application.

j)

6- Names of BOD members, BOD Committees’ members and Executive Management, their current and previous positions,
qualifications and experience:
a) Board members:
Name

Previous Position

Qualifications
•• Master of Business Administration (MBA)
– Finance.

H.E. Mr. Soliman
S. Al-Humayyd

BOD Chairman,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

•• Diploma in Business Administration
Minister of Social Affairs

•• Bachelor of Business Administration –
Finance
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates

Project Director of King
Abdullah Financial Center
- Raidah Investment
Company

•• Master of Computer Science.

Director of the Center
of Digital Excellence General Organization
for Social Insurance

Business Development
Manager, Computer
Department- General
Organization for Social
Insurance

•• Master of Computer - Computer Science.

Mr. Abdullah M.
Al-Fayez

BOD member,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

BOD member, National
Petrochemical Company
(Petrochem)

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

BOD member,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

Assistant Governor for
Investment in the General
Organization for Social
Insurance

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki

•• Bachelor of Chemical Engineering.
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.
•• Bachelor of Computer-Information
Systems.
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.
•• Bachelor of Engineering in Minerals.
•• Chase Manhattan Bank, Credit and
Banking Program.
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.
•• Bachelor of Civil Engineering.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates in the fields of governance,
project management and financial
evaluation.

5- Articles of the Corporate Governance Regulations applied / not applied and reasons for non-implementation
Tawuniya has applied all articles of the Insurance Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabia Monetary Authority (SAMA) and the
Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority (CMA), except the following articles:
Mr. Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nowaiser
No. of Article/ Para

Article 38 - Para (1)
(Guiding article not binding)

Article 54 - Para (b)
(Guiding article not binding).

Wording of Article/ Para
The Board secretary shall hold a bachelor degree in
law, finance, accounting or administration or their
equivalent, and has relevant practical experience of not
less than three years.
The chairman of the audit committee shall be an
independent Board Director.

Extent of
Application

Reasons for nonimplementation

Notes

Greatly applied

Guiding article not
binding

The Board Secretary works to
complete his bachelor’s degree.
Added to that he has extensive
training and long experience in
the company’s business activity.

Guiding article not
binding

The chairman of the audit
committee is independent but he
is not a Board Director.

Not applied

Internal Audit Report:

Article 78 - Para (a)
(Guiding article not binding)

a) The internal audit unit or department shall prepare
and submit a written report on its activities at least
quarterly to the Board and the audit committee. Such
report shall include an assessment of the Company’s
internal control system and the final opinion and
recommendations of the unit or department. Such
report shall also specify the procedures taken by
each department for addressing the findings and
recommendations from the previous audit, and any
remarks thereon, particularly failures to promptly
address such findings and recommendations and the
reasons for such failure.

Not applied

Guiding article not
binding

The Internal Audit reports are
now reported on an annual basis,
and if necessary, the Internal
Audit Department will report to
the Board on a quarterly basis.

Experience
•• Governor of the General
Organization for Social
Insurance.
•• Vice-Chairman of the
International Organization of
Social Insurance

•• Master of Chemical Engineering.
Chief Operating Officer
- Raidah Investment
Company

Sharia Approvals
The Shariyah consultant (Shriayah Review Bureau) issued the Shariyah
Review Report of the Company for Cooperative Insurance for the
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016. A comprehensive
legal review has also been conducted to the Company’s business and
documents implemented by the management to make sure of the
compliance by the Company’s management with the controls and
standards adopted by the Shriyah Review Bureau. Based on the above,
the report concluded that the activities, operations and investments
carried out by the Company have been conducted in accordance
with the provisions of regulations and legal standards approved by
the Shriyah Review Bureau and the standards of the Accounting and
Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI).

Current Position

Vice President Finance, Arabian
Internet Services &
Telecom Co. Ltd.

Vice President - Finance
at Abdullah Al Othaim
Investment & Real Estate
Development Company.

•• Master of Accounting with two subspecialties: Finance and Information
Systems
•• Bachelor of Accounting
•• Many professional certificates in
accounting, financial administration and
auditing.

Projects Management, research
and planning at Al-Raidah
Investment Company and the
Capital Market Authority.
He occupied several managerial
positions in the field of
information technology at the
General Organization for Social
Insurance.
He was the General Manager of
Saudi Public Transport Company
(SAPTCO).
He also participated in the board
of directors of a number of
national companies.
He occupied several leading
positions in the General
Organization for Social Insurance
and is a member of the boards
of directors and committees of
a number of national companies
and banks.
Executive Partner and CEO of
National Advisory House. He
also worked as a lecturer in the
accounting section at King Saud
University in Riyadh.

•• Bachelor of Medical Science
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of CARE

CEO – The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis

Consultant - Raidah
Investment Company

Deputy Governor for
Investment in the Public
Pension Agency

Mr. Jaser A. Aljaser

General Manager of
Planning, Studies and
Research Department
in the Public Pension
Agency.

Actuary senior specialist in
the Public Pension Agency.

•• Professional Certificate in health
insurance.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates in Insurance and
management.
•• Bachelor of Economics.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.
•• Master of Actuarial Science.
•• Bachelor of Operations Research.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.

He occupied several positions
in the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority for 21 years.
He occupied several positions
in the fields of planning,
development, studies, and
actuarial studies at the Public
Pension Agency.
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b) Board Committees members

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Executive Committee
Name

Current Position

Previous Position

Qualifications
•• Master of Business Administration (MBA)
– Finance.

H.E. Mr. Soliman S.
Al-Humayyd

BOD Chairman,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

•• Diploma in Business Administration
Minister of Social Affairs

•• Bachelor of Business Administration –
Finance
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates

Name

Current Position

Previous Position

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

BOD member,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

Assistant Governor for
Investment in the General
Organization for Social
Insurance

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki

Director of the Center
of Digital Excellence General Organization
for Social Insurance

Business Development
Manager, Computer
Department- General
Organization for Social
Insurance

Mr. Jaser A. Aljaser

General Manager of
Planning, Studies and
Research Department
in the Public Pension
Agency.

Actuary senior specialist in
the Public Pension Agency.

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

BOD member,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

BOD member, National
Petrochemical Company
(Petrochem)

Experience
•• Governor of the General
Organization for Social
Insurance.
•• Vice-Chairman of the
International Organization of
Social Insurance

•• Master of Chemical Engineering.
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

Chief Operating Officer
- Raidah Investment
Company

Project Director of King
Abdullah Financial Center
- Raidah Investment
Company

•• Master of Computer Science.
•• Bachelor of Chemical Engineering.
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.

Projects Management, research
and planning at Al-Raidah
Investment Company and the
Capital Market Authority.

•• Bachelor of Medical Science
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of CARE

CEO – The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

•• Professional Certificate in health
insurance.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates in Insurance and
management.

He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.

Mr. Abdulaziz H. Alboug

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of The Company
for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

Senior Vice President –
Sales and Marketing, the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

•• Medical Underwriting Specialist
Certificate, certified by the Chartered
Institute of Insurance, UK.

He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.

Mr. Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nowaiser
(He resigned from the
Committee on 5/2/2017)

Vice President Finance, Arabian
Internet Services &
Telecom Co. Ltd.

Name

He resigned from the
Committee on 31/12/2017

Vice President - Finance
at Abdullah Al Othaim
Investment & Real Estate
Development Company.

Current Position

Previous Position

Qualifications
•• Master of Business Administration (MBA)
– Finance.

BOD Chairman,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

•• Diploma in Business Administration
Minister of Social Affairs

•• Bachelor of Business Administration –
Finance
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates

•• Governor of the General
Organization for Social
Insurance.
•• Vice-Chairman of the
International Organization of
Social Insurance

Chief Operating Officer
- Raidah Investment
Company

Project Director of King
Abdullah Financial Center
- Raidah Investment
Company

•• Master of Computer Science.
•• Bachelor of Chemical Engineering.
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.

Projects Management, research
and planning at Al-Raidah
Investment Company and the
Capital Market Authority.

•• Bachelor of Medical Science
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of CARE

CEO – The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

•• Professional Certificate in health
insurance.

•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.
•• Bachelor of Operations Research.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

•• Chase Manhattan Bank, Credit and
Banking Program.
•• Many specialized and professional
certificates.
•• Master of Accounting with two subspecialties: Finance and Information
Systems
•• Bachelor of Accounting
•• Many professional certificates in
accounting, financial administration and
auditing.

He occupied several managerial
positions in the field of
information technology at the
General Organization for Social
Insurance.
He occupied several positions
in the fields of planning,
development, studies, and
actuarial studies at the Public
Pension Agency.
He was the General Manager of
Saudi Public Transport Company
(SAPTCO).
He also participated in the board
of directors of a number of
national companies.
Executive Partner and CEO of
National Advisory House. He
also worked as a lecturer in the
accounting section at King Saud
University in Riyadh.

Previous Position

Qualifications

Experience

Consultant - Raidah
Investment Company

•• Bachelor of Economics.

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis

Deputy Governor for
Investment in the Public
Pension Agency

He occupied several positions
in the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority for 21 years.

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

BOD member,
The Company for
Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya)

Assistant Governor for
Investment in the General
Organization for Social
Insurance

•• Many professional and specialized
certificates in Insurance and
management.

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of The Company
for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

Senior Vice President –
Sales and Marketing, the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

•• American Associateship in Medical
Insurance.
•• Medical Underwriting Specialist Certificate,
certified by the Chartered Institute of
Insurance, UK.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

Mr. Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nowaiser
(He resigned from the
Investment Committee on
December 2017 to join the
Audit Committee).

Vice President Finance, Arabian
Internet Services &
Telecom Co. Ltd.

Vice President - Finance
at Abdullah Al Othaim
Investment & Real Estate
Development Company.

He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.

•• Bachelor of International Business
Administration.

Mr. Abdulaziz H. Alboug

•• Bachelor of Computer-Information
Systems.

He occupied several leading
positions in the General
Organization for Social Insurance
and is a member of the boards
of directors and committees of
a number of national companies
and banks.

Current Position

Experience

•• Master of Chemical Engineering.
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

•• Master of Computer - Computer Science.

Experience

Investment Committee

Risk Committee

H.E. Mr. Soliman S. AlHumayyd

•• Many professional and specialized
certificates in the fields of governance,
project management and financial
evaluation.

•• Bachelor of Engineering in Minerals.

•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

Name

•• Bachelor of Civil Engineering.

•• Master of Actuarial Science.

•• Bachelor of International Business
Administration.
•• American Associateship in Medical
Insurance.

Qualifications

•• Bachelor of Civil Engineering.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates in the fields of governance,
project management and financial
evaluation.
•• Master of Accounting with two subspecialties: Finance and Information
Systems
•• Bachelor of Accounting
•• Many professional certificates in
accounting, financial administration and
auditing.

He occupied several leading
positions in the General
Organization for Social Insurance
and is a member of the boards
of directors and committees of
a number of national companies
and banks.
Executive Partner and CEO of
National Advisory House. He
also worked as a lecturer in the
accounting section at King Saud
University in Riyadh.

•• Bachelor of International Business
Administration.

Mr. Abdulaziz H. Alboug
He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.

•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of The Company
for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

Senior Vice President –
Sales and Marketing, the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

•• American Associateship in Medical
Insurance.
•• Medical Underwriting Specialist
Certificate, certified by the Chartered
Institute of Insurance, UK.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.
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Audit Committee
Name

Mr. Turky A. Alluhaid

c) Senior Executives
Current Position

General Manager of
Alluhaid Chartered
Accountants

Previous Position

Chief Financial OfficerAl-Ayouni Investment &
Contracting Co

Qualifications

Experience

•• Bachelor of Accounting.

•• Chief Financial OfficerAl-Ayouni Investment &
Contracting Co.

•• Professional Certificate in Accounting
(SCOPA)
•• Certificate in Public Accounting (CPA)

•• Audit Director, Ernest & Young
Office.

Name

Mr. Mohammed Farhan
Alnader

Executive Partner of
United Accountants
(member of RSM
International Group)

Chief Financial Officer
of Awqaf Sulaiman Bin
Abdulaziz Al Rajhi Holding
Company

•• Master of Business Administration and
Finance
•• American Fellowship of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA)
•• Fellowship of the Saudi Association of
Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA)

Previous Position

Mr. Abdulaziz H. Alboug

Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of The Company
for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

Senior Vice President –
Sales and Marketing, the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance (Tawuniya)

•• Chief Financial Officer of Awqaf
Sulaiman Bin Abdulaziz Al Rajhi
Holding Company.

Mr. Sultan S. Al-Khomashi

•• Senior Auditor at KPMG

Senior Vice-President
(SVP) – Technical

Vice President-Property
and Casualty

Mr. Ayman M. Almeqham

Mr. Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nowaiser
(The General Assembly held
on 28 Dec. 2017 approved
his nomination in the Audit
Committee)

Vice President Finance, Arabian
Internet Services &
Telecom Co. Ltd.

Chief Financial Officer
of Al Rajhi Real Estate
Investments.

•• Saudi Fellowship of Certified Public
Accountants (SOCPA)
•• American Fellowship of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA)

Vice President - Finance
at Abdullah Al Othaim
Investment & Real Estate
Development Company.

•• Master of Accounting with two subspecialties: Finance and Information
Systems
•• Bachelor of Accounting
•• Many professional certificates in
accounting, financial administration and
auditing.

•• Chief Financial Officer of Al
Rajhi Real Estate Investments.

Mr. Abdullah A. Al-Arfaj

Chief Operating Officer
(COO)

Vice President- Medical
Insurance and Takaful

•• Audit Director of Deloitte &
Touche.

Executive Partner and CEO of
National Advisory House. He
also worked as a lecturer in the
accounting section at King Saud
University in Riyadh.

•• Medical Underwriting Specialist
Certificate, certified by the Chartered
Institute of Insurance, UK.

•• Master in Insurance and Risk
Management.
•• Advanced Diploma in Insurance (ACII).
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.

•• Master of Accounting
•• Bachelor of Accounting.

•• American Associateship in Medical
Insurance.

•• Master and Bachelor’s degrees in
Chemical Engineering

•• Auditor Assistant at Grant
Thornton Co.
General Manager at
Ayman Almegham
Chartered Accountants
Office

Experience

He occupied a number of leading
positions in the Company for
Cooperative Insurance.

•• Many professional and specialized
certificates.

•• Director of Audit and Quality
at Deloitte.
•• Assistant Director of Price
Waterhouse Coopers.

Qualifications
•• Bachelor of International Business
Administration.

•• Credit manager in Riyad Bank.
•• Bachelor of Accounting

Current Position

Mr. Adel A. Al-Hamoudi

Senior Vice PresidentSales and Marketing

Vice President- Key
Accounts

•• Bachelor degree in Quantitative
Methods
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.

•• Bachelor degree in Mass Communication
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.
•• Master degree in Finance.

Mr. Fahad S. Al-Moammar

Senior Vice PresidentInvestment

Vice President- Investment

•• Bachelor degree in Insurance and Real
Estate.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.
•• Master degree in financial Services and
insurance.

Mr. Abdulrahman M.
Al-Dokhayel

Vice PresidentProperty and Casualty

General ManagerReinsurance

•• Bachelor degree in Financial
Administration.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.

Mr. Omar A. Al Mahmood

Mr. Mansoor F. Abuthnein

Vice President- Medical
Insurance and Takaful

Vice President- Motor

Assistant General ManagerMedical Insurance and
Takaful

General ManagerCustomer Service

•• Bachelor degree in Management
Information System.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.

•• Bachelor degree in Information Systems.
•• Many professional and specialized
certificates and training courses.
•• Bachelor degree in Accounting.

Mr. Amr A. Al-Nemary

Chief Financial Officer
(CFO)

CFO-Operations, BAE
Systems

•• Many financial, accounting and
professional certificates and training
courses.

He occupied a number of
managerial positions in the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance, particularly in Property
and Casualty Insurance sector.
He occupied a number of
managerial positions in the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance, particularly in Medical
Insurance and Takaful sector.
He occupied a number of
managerial positions in the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance, particularly in the
field of Key Accounts sales and
Western regional manager.
Long experience in investment
management, investment
portfolios for banks and financial
institutions.
He occupied a number of
managerial positions in the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance, particularly in the
field of reinsurance and technical
support.
He occupied a number of
managerial positions in the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance, particularly in the
field of information systems
development.
He occupied a number of
managerial positions in the
Company for Cooperative
Insurance, particularly in the field
of motor insurance and customer
service.
He occupied a number of
managerial and financial
positions at several local and
international companies such as
BAE Systems, NAS, ExxonMobil
and Saudi Electricity Company.
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7- Names of companies within or outside the Kingdom in which a BOD director is a member of its current and previous Boards of Directors or
is a director therein:

Name of BOD Director

Names of the
Companies in which
the BOD director
is a member of its
current Boards or a
director therein

H.E.Mr. Soliman S. AlHumayyd

BOD Chairman,
United Insurance
Company (Bahrain)

Legal Entity
Inside/ outside KSA

Outside the Kingdom

(Listed JSC/ Unlisted
JSC/ Joint Stock
Company/LLC/ ….)

Bahraini closed joint
stock company

Names of the
Companies in which
the BOD director
was a member of its
previous Boards or a
director therein
BOD member,
Mohammed
Abdulaziz Al-Rajhi
Holding Company

Legal Entity
Inside/ outside KSA

Inside the Kingdom

(Listed JSC/ Unlisted
JSC/ Joint Stock
Company/LLC/ ….)

Holding Company

(2013-2015)

BOD member,
Al-Faisliah Holding
Group

Inside the Kingdom

Holding Group

BOD Member and
Executive Committee
member – Saudi
Arabian Mining
Company (Maaden)

Name of BOD Director

Mr. Abdul Aziz I. AlNowaiser
Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Inside/ outside
KSA

(Listed JSC/
Unlisted JSC/ Joint
Stock Company/
LLC/ ….)

Names of the
Companies in which
the BOD director
was a member of its
previous Boards or a
director therein

Founder and BOD member
of the House of National
Consulting Company (HNC)

Inside the
Kingdom

Limited Liability
Company

BOD Chairman,
Saudi Tourism
Development
Company

BOD member, Al-Hamaid and
Al-Nemr Consulting Company

Inside the
Kingdom

Professional
Company

BOD member, Entertainment
Company for Development
and Investment

Inside the
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint
Stock Company

BOD member, Al-Rajhi Bank

Inside the
Kingdom

Joint Stock
Company

Names of the Companies in
which the BOD director is a
member of its current Boards
or a director therein

Legal Entity

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
Mr. Ghassan Abdul
Karim Al-Malki
Mr. Abdullah M.
Al-Fayez

Bahraini closed joint
stock company

None

BOD member, United
Insurance Company
(Bahrain)

BOD member,
Raidah Investment
Company (20072015)

Outside the Kingdom

BOD member,
National
Petrochemical
Company
(Petrochem)

Inside the Kingdom

BOD member,
Manafe Company

Inside the Kingdom

BOD and Executive
Committee member,
Qassim Cement
Company

Inside the Kingdom

Inside the Kingdom

Bahraini closed joint
stock company

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Joint Stock Company

Joint Stock Company

BOD member,
DAEM Real Estate
Investment
BOD member, SABIC
(2012-2013)
BOD Chairman,
Granada Investment
Center

Inside the Kingdom

Inside the Kingdom

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

(2013-2017)

Inside the
Kingdom

Professional
Committee

BOD member, Waseel
Application Services Provider

Inside the
Kingdom

Joint Stock
Company

BOD member, United
Insurance Company
(Bahrain)

Outside the Kingdom

Bahraini closed joint
stock company

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Inside the Kingdom

Closed Joint Stock
Company

BOD member,
Cooperative Real
Estate Investment
Company (CREIC)

Inside the Kingdom

Limited Liability
Company

Inside the
Kingdom

Joint Stock
Company

Member of the
Investment
Committee,
Tawuniya

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

BOD member,
National
Petrochemical
Company
(Petrochem)

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

Inside the Kingdom

Joint Stock Company

(2007-2016)
BOD member , United
Insurance Company (Bahrain)

Mr. Jaser A. Aljaser

(2013-2015)
Member of
Investment
Committee, Al-Rajhi
Investment Company

Joint Stock
Company

Mr. Abdulaziz A.
Alkhamis

Limited Liability
Company

(1996-1999)
BOD and Executive
Committee member,
NCB Capital,

Inside the
Kingdom

Chairman of the General
Committee of Insurance
Companies Managing
Directors

Vice Chairman, Saudi
Investment Bank

(1989-1999)
BOD and Executive
Committee member,
Al-Ahsa Medical
Services

BOD member, Najm Insurance
Services Company

Joint Stock Company

(2002-2013)
BOD and Executive
Committee member,
National Company
for Tourism

Limited Liability
Company

(2011-2013)

Joint Stock Company

Joint Stock Company

Inside the Kingdom

(2014-2015)

(2010-2016)

None

BOD and Executive
Committee member,
National Commercial
Bank (NCB)

Mr. Abdulaziz Abdullah
Al Zaid

Outside the Kingdom

BOD member, Riyad
Bank

(Listed JSC/ Unlisted
JSC/ Joint Stock
Company/LLC/ ….)

(2009-2011)

(2008-2013)
BOD member, United
Insurance Company
(Bahrain)

Legal Entity
Inside/ outside KSA

BOD member, Saudi Industries
Development Company

Outside the
Kingdom
Inside the
Kingdom

Bahraini closed
joint stock
company
Joint Stock
Company

BOD member,
Saudi Petrochemical
Company (Sadaf)
(2010-2016)
None
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8- Formation of the Board of Directors, the classification of its members as follows: Executive, Non-Executive and Independent:
The Ordinary General Assembly convened on the 21st of March, 2017 elected the BOD members for the eleventh session began on the 26th of March,
2017 and lasts for a three-year period expiring on the 25th of March, 2020. Below is the formation of the Board of Directors and the classification of
directors according to the Saudi Arabia Monetary Authority. Noting that no director of the Company’s Board of Directors occupies any executive position
in Tawuniya:
Members Classification

Member Name
and the entity such director represents

Executive/ Non-Executive/ Independent

HE Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd - Chairman

Non-Executive

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa - Vice Chairman

Independent

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki - Director
(Representative of the General Organization for Social Insurance – GOSI)

Attendance Record of Executive Committee Meetings
Number of meetings

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

Waleed A. Aleisa

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Abdulaziz H. Al-Boug

Ali A. Al-Subaihin

First: 07/02/2017

Attended

Did not attend

Attended

He is not a member

Attended

Second: 25/04/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

Third: 29/05/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

Fourth: 12/09/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

Fifth: 09/11/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

Total

5

4

5

4

1

b) Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Non-Executive
Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

Chairman

Non-executive

Ghassan A. Al-Malki

Member

Non-executive

Independent

Jaser A. Aljaser

Member

Independent

Non-Executive

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

Member

Independent

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis - Director

Non-Executive

Hamood A. Al-Twaigery

Member

His Board membership expired

Mr. Jaser A. Aljaser - Director
(Representative of Public Pension Agency)

Independent

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez - Director

Independent

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid - Director

Non-Executive

Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nowaiser - Director
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

9- Actions taken by the Board of Directors to apprise its members – especially Non-Executives- with the shareholders proposals and their remarks
about the company and its overall performance:
In the event of receiving any proposals or remarks from shareholders, the Board of Directors shall apprise its members, specifically the Non-Executive –
with such suggestions and remarks by using the following means:

1. Meetings of the Board of Directors.
2. Meetings of Board Committees.
3. Meetings of the General Assembly.

1-

To recommend to the Board of Directors nomination for membership of the Board of Directors and its committees, in accordance with the regulatory
requirements, policies and standards adopted.

2-

The annual revision required for the needs of the suitable skills for membership of the Board of Directors and its committees and preparing a description
to the capabilities and qualifications required for membership of the Board and its committees and determine the time that needs to be devoted by the
member to the work of the Board and / or its committees.

3-

Assess the structure and composition of the Board and its committees, determine their vulnerabilities on a regular basis and propose the necessary steps
to address them.

4- Assess and monitor the independence of the members of the Board and its committees and making sure there are no conflicts of interests, including
ensuring, on an annual basis, the independence of Board independent members.

10- A brief description of the competences of the committees and their functions such as: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, along with the names of committees, their chairmen, members, number of meetings held, dates of meetings and attendees per
each meeting:

5-

Develop clear policies for compensation and remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors and its committees and senior management.

6-

Evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and its committees periodically.

7-

Present recommendations with respect to the nomination and dismissal of the members of senior management.

8- Design the policy and procedures for succession to the CEO and senior members of top management and monitoring the implementation of the
succession plans and procedures.

a) Executive Committee

9-

Review the compensation plans of the members of senior management.

Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

Chairman

Non-executive

10- Supervise the induction program and training for members of the Board of Directors.

Waleed A. Aleisa

Member

Independent

11- Submit recommendation to the Board on matters relating to remuneration and nomination.

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Member

Non-executive

Abdulaziz H. Al-Boug

Member/ CEO

He is not a Board member

Ali A. Al-Subaihin

Member

His Board membership expired

Executive Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

Attendance Record of Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings
Number of meetings

Abdulaziz
A. Al-Zaid

Ghassan Al-Malki

Jaser
Aljaser

Abdullah
Al-Fayez

Waleed A. Aleisa

Abdul Aziz Al-Nowaiser

Hamood Al-Twaigery

First: 27/01/2017

He is not a
member

Attended

He is not a
member

He is
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Second: 30/01/2017

He is not a
member

Attended

He is not a
member

He is
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Third: 05/02/2017

He is not a
member

Attended

He is not a
member

He is
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

1- Providing recommendations to the Board of Directors’ (BOD) on strategic and operating plans, budgets, business plans and necessary actions required.
2- Making decisions about the issues delegated by the Board that are outside the scope of CEO’s powers, including those issues related to capital expenditures
and purchases within the limits delegated to the committee of the Board of Directors.

Fourth: 25/04/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

His membership expired

Fifth: 13/06/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

His membership expired

Sixth: 12/09/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

His membership expired

Seventh: 05/11/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

His membership expired

Total

4

7

4

4

3

3

3
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c) Audit Committee
Chairman and Members

Attendance Record of Audit Committee Meetings
Membership capacity

Classification

Chairman (up to the 3rd meeting)
The Company General Assembly meeting held
on 28/12/2017 re-nominated him in the Audit
Committee)

Independent

Alaa Abdullah Al-Faddi

Member (up to the third meeting)

He is not a Board member

Turky A. Al –Luhaid

Member (up to the third meeting) and committee
chairman (as of the fourth meeting)

He is not a Board member

Mohammed Farhan Al-Nader

Member (as of the fourth meeting)

Mr. Ayman M. Al-Muqhem

Member (as of the fourth meeting)

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser

Alaa Abdullah Al-Faddi

Turky Al–Luhaid

Mohammed AlNader

Ayman Al-Muqhem
He is not a member

First: 15/1/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a member

Second: 5/2/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a member

He is not a member

Third: 7/2/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a member

He is not a member

Fourth: 1/3/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fifth: 26/3/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Sixth: 3/5/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a Board member

Seventh: 24/5/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a Board member

Eighth: 15/7/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Ninth: 12/9/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Tenth: 26/9/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Eleventh: 16/10/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Twelfth: 26/11/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Thirteenth: 12/12/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fourteenth: 18/12/2017

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Total

3

3

14

11

11

Audit Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

1-

Number of meetings

Present recommendations to Board to approve the nomination or re-nomination of the external auditors, and this includes ensuring that the external
auditors have expertise necessary to perform the audit of the Company’s business professionally.

2-

Appoint and dismiss the chief compliance officer after obtaining “No Objection” in writing from SAMA.

3-

Recommends to the Board the nomination appoint and dismissal of the chief internal auditor after obtaining “No Objection” in writing from SAMA.

4- Ensure the independence of the external auditors from the company members of the Board and senior management.

d) Investment Committee

5-

Ensure the independence of the Internal Audit Department or the internal auditor in the performance of their duties and verify the absence of any
restrictions on their acts or the presence of any matter of negative impact on their acts.

6-

Ensure the independence of Compliance Department or chief compliance officer in the performance of their duties and verify the absence of any restrictions on
their acts or the presence of any matter of negative impact on their acts.

Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Abdulaziz A. Al -Khamees

Chairman

Non-executive

Discuss the annual and quarterly interim financial statements with the external auditors and senior management of the Company before they are issued.

Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

Member

Non-executive

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser

Member

Independent

Abdulaziz Hassan Al-Boug

Member/ CEO

He is not a Board member

Hamood A. Al-Twaigery

Member

His Board membership expired

7-

8- Examine and review the annual and interim financial statements and recommend to the Board thereon.
9-

Study the internal and external auditors’ plan.

10- Study, approve and follow-up the implementation of compliance plan.
11- Study the important accounting policies, their procedures and changes that may be carried out on them.
12- Prepare a report on the Committee’s opinion on the adequacy of internal controls system in the Company and the other work the Committee has performed
within the scope of its jurisdiction. This report must be presented in Head Office of the Company before (10) days from the date of the General Assembly.
13- Coordinate between the internal and external auditors.
14- Examine the reports of external auditors and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.
15- Review the reports of the Internal Audit Department or internal auditor and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.

Investment Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

1-

Review and approve the investment strategy and policies provided by the executive management.

2-

Supervise the implementation of the investment strategy and policies and ensure strict compliance with them.

3-

Review and evaluate the investment proposals that require the approval of the Committee and make decisions about the Company’s investments in the
limits of powers granted by the Board of Directors.

16- Review the reports of the Compliance Department and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.

4- Nominate the investment managers outside the Kingdom and evaluate their services, terminate their duties and determine their fees.

17- Study the reports issued by the regulatory and supervisory authorities or official regulator and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.

5-

Define the investment limits inside and outside the Kingdom in accordance with the Investment Regulation issued by SAMA.

18- Assess the level of efficiency, effectiveness and objectivity of the work of external auditors, Internal Audit Department or internal auditor, the Compliance
Department or chief compliance officer.

6-

Supervise the observance of investment limits in each investment tool.

7-

Review and evaluate the Company’s existing investments through the periodic reports on the same.

19- Study the observations of SAMA and the relevant supervisory and regulatory authorities on any legal violations or requests for corrective measures and make
recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.

8- Inform the Board on its works, findings or decisions taken.

20- Study the evaluation of the internal and external auditors on the internal control procedures.
21- Study the processes among the entities of the group and operations with related parties.
Attendance Record of Investment Committee Meetings

22- Study the actuary reports and make recommendations thereon to the Board.
23- Ensure the Company’s compliance with implementation of the proposals and recommendations of the actuary when they are compulsory under the
regulations and instructions issued by SAMA and the relevant supervisory and regulatory authorities.

Number of meetings

Abdulaziz A. Al Khamees

24- Follow-up the reports issued by SAMA and the relevant supervisory and regulatory authorities concerned and make recommendations thereon to the Board.

First : 25/1/2017

He is not a member

Attended

He is not a member

He is not a member

Attended

Attended

25- Determine the monthly salary, stimulating bonus and other awards for the Internal Audit Department or internal auditor in accordance with the internal
regulations of the Company which are approved by the Board.

Second : 5/4/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

Third : 11/6/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

26- Determine the monthly salary, stimulating bonus and other awards for the Compliance Department or chief compliance officer in accordance with the internal
regulations of the Company which are approved by the Board.

Fourth : 9/9/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

Fifth : 7/11/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

His membership expired

27- Ensure the availability of a written regulation on the rules of professional ethics and conduct after its approval by the Board to ensure that the Company’s
business activities are transacted in a fair and ethical manner.

Total

4

5

4

4

1

1

28- Follow-up the important lawsuits filed by or versus the Company with the manager of Compliance Department or chief compliance officer, and submit
periodic reports on them to the Board.
29- Ensure the optimal use of information technology and the availability of necessary controls to get accurate, authentic and reliable information and data.

Abdulaziz A.
Al Zaid

Abdulaziz I.
Al-Nowaiser

Abdulaziz Al-Boug

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Hamood A. Al Twaigery
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Remuneration of the Board Members

Risk Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

Expenditure allowance

Grand total

His membership expired

End of service award

Member

Total

He is not a Board member

Saad A. Al-Marzoqi

Shares granted (value to be entered)

Member/ CEO

Long-term incentive plan

Non-executive

Abdulaziz H. Al-Boug

Periodic remuneration for fiscal year
2016

Independent

Member

Share in profits

Member

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Total

Waleed A. Aleisa

Variable Remuneration
Remuneration of Chairman, managing
director or secretary, if a member

Non-executive

Amount received by Board members
as employees, administrators, or for
technical, administrative or consulting

Chairman

Fixed Remuneration

In-kind benefits

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd,
He resigned from the Committee on 31/12/2017

Committee meetings attended

Classification
Remuneration for Board meetings
attended

Membership capacity

Fixed amount

Chairman and Members

(SR’000)

Short-term incentive plan

e) Risk Committee

1-

Identify the risks the Company may be exposed to and maintain a level of risk acceptable to the Company.

First: Independent Members

2-

Supervise the risk management systems and assessing their effectiveness.

Waleed A. Aleisa

0

24

33

0

0

0

57

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

257

0

3-

Design a comprehensive strategy for the management of the Company’s risks, supervise the application of risk management, review and update such
strategy periodically, taking into account the relevant internal and external changes.

Abdullah Al-Fayez

0

24

18

0

0

0

42

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

242

0

4- Review the risk management policies.

Abdul Aziz AlNowaiser

0

24

30

0

0

0

54

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

254

0

5-

Review and re-assess the level of risk acceptance by the Company and the extent of its exposure to risks periodically.

Jaser Aljaser

0

21

15

0

0

0

36

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

36

0

6-

Present detailed reports to the Board on the potential risks and make recommendations on how to manage them.

Total

0

93

96

0

0

0

189

0

600

0

0

0

600

0

789

0

7-

Provide advice to the Board of Directors about the issues pertaining to risk management.

Second : Non-executive Members
Soliman Al-Humayyd

0

24

30

0

0

420

474

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

674

0

Ghassan Al-Malki

0

24

30

0

0

0

54

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

254

0

Abdulaziz Al-Zaid

0

24

30

0

0

0

54

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

254

0

Saad A. Al-Marzoqi

Raeed Al Tamimi

0

24

30

0

0

0

54

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

54

0

Abduaziz Al-Khamis

0

21

12

0

0

0

33

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

33

0

0

117

132

0

0

420

669

0

600

0

0

0

600

0

Attendance Record of Risk Committee Meetings
Number of meetings

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

Waleed A. Aleisa

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Abdulaziz Hassan Al-Boug

First: 7/2/2017

Attended

Did not attend

Attended

He is not a member

Attended

Second: 26/04/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

Total

Third: 13/09/2017

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership expired

Third : Executive Members

Total

3

2

3

2

1

11- Where applicable, the means by which the Board of Directors relied on the evaluation of its performance and that of its committees and
members, the external entity that conducted the evaluation and its relationship to the Company, if any:

1,269

0

None

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fourth : Members from last Board session
Saad Al-Marzoqi

0

3

3

0

0

0

6

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

206

0

The policy for assessing the performance of the Board members and committees has been adopted. The forms approved under this policy have been used
as a means of evaluation.

Ali Al-Subaihin

0

3

3

0

0

0

6

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

206

0

Hamood Al-Twaigery

0

6

9

0

0

0

15

0

200

0

0

0

200

0

215

0

12- Disclosure of remuneration of Board members and Executive Management as provided for in article (93) of the Corporate Governance Regulations:

Total

0

12

15

0

0

0

27

0

600

0

0

0

600

0

627

0

Remuneration policy and method adopted to determine the remuneration of Board members and Executive Management:
In accordance with Article No. (19) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the minimum limit of the annual reward for the Board chairman and members is
(SR. 300,000) Three Hundred Thousand Saudi Riyal, and the maximum is (SR 500,000) Five Hundred Thousand Saudi Riyal against their membership in the
Board and services they perform inclusive of additional rewards in case of any member participate in any of the committees related to the Board of Directors.
If the Company achieve profits, a percentage equal to 10% of the net profit may be distributed after deducting provisions approved by the general assembly
in accordance with the Law on Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies and after distributing the profits to Shareholders not lesser than 5% of the
Company’s paid capital provided that such reward shall be as per the number of meetings attended by the member, and any otherwise contrary assessment
shall be null and void.
In all cases, total remuneration of the Board of Directors shall not exceed (SR 500,000) Five Hundred Thousand Saudi Riyal. Maximum limit for attending the
session meetings and committees is (SR 5,000) Five Thousand Saudi Riyal for each session excluding travel expenses and residence. The Board members and
chairman shall receive the actual costs they incur for attending the meetings of Board and related committees including travel expenses and other costs.
An updated policy for the remuneration of the Board members and committees as well as another policy for the Executive Management have been approved by
the Board of Directors in preparation for presenting before the General Assembly meeting.
The relationship between the remuneration awarded and the applicable remuneration policy
In granting the remuneration to the Board members, the Company adopts the contents set forth in the above Para which is consistent with the
remuneration policy approved by the Company Board of Directors for the Board members and committees as well as the Executive Management, which
has been presented before the General Assembly meeting.

Like the Company personnel, BOD members are granted an insurance cover for home and private motor vehicles at reduced rates (up to two motor
vehicles for each BOD member). Added to that, each BOD member obtains free medical insurance for him and his family members at the same benefits
provided in the Medical Insurance Policy applicable to the staff of Tawuniya.
Remunerations and Compensations of Senior Executives
(SR’000)

Description

Remuneration and compensations received by Five Senior Executives including the
CEO and CFO who received the highest remuneration and compensation

Salaries and compensation

6,001

Fixed Allowances

3,093

Variable Remunerations

2,897

Other Remunerations and Plans

447

Performance-linked Annual Remunerations

3,627

Remuneration of the ex CEO for the fiscal year 2016

3,000

Total

19,065
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14- Results of the annual audit of the effectiveness of the internal control procedures of the Company, in addition to the opinion of the Audit Committee

Remuneration of the Board Committee members

on the adequacy of internal control system in the Company
Proposed Fixed Remuneration
(excluding the meetings attending
allowance)

Meetings attending allowance

Total

Soliman S. A. Al Humayyd

26

18

44

Waleed A. Al Eissa

100

15

115

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

100

18

118

Abdulaziz H. Alboug

100

15

115

Ali Al Subaihin (former member)

0

3

3

Total

326

69

395

Abdulaziz Al Nowaiser

0

9

9

Turky Al-Luhaid

100

39

139

Mohammed Frahan Al-Nader

100

30

130

Ayman Al-Muqhem

100

30

130

Alaa Al-Faddi (former member)

0

9

9

Total

300

117

417

Executive Committee Members

Audit Committee Members

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Members
Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

100

15

115

Ghassan A. Al-Malki

100

24

124

Jaser A. Aljaser

100

24

124

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

100

24

124

Hamood A. Al-Twaigery
(former member)

0

9

9

Total

400

96

496

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

0

12

12

Waleed A. Al Eissa

0

9

9

Raeed A. Al Tamimi

0

12

12

Abdulaziz H. Alboug

0

9

9

0

3

3

0

45

45

Abdulaziz Al-Khamis

100

12

112

Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

0

15

15

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser

100

12

112

Abdulaziz H. Alboug

0

12

12

0

3

3

200

54

254

Risk Committee Members

Saad A. Al-Marzoqi
(former member)

Total

The Internal Audit Department of the Company has implemented the annual internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The Department
presented the principal observation reports to the Executive management and the Audit Committee. The Committee also nominated an independent
external consultant to evaluate the internal control system and the Internal Audit Department during 2017. The Board of Directors reviewed the important
comments and observations made by the Audit Committee regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control procedures. The Board then
directed the Executive Management to prepare an action plan to implement and address all observations presented. The results of the annual audit of
the effectiveness of the internal control procedures of the Company have revealed the efficiency of the system and control environment prevailing in
the Company in many ways, with a number of observations that require improvement of some of the components of the system of internal and risk
control applied by Tawuniya to cope with the work volume and requirements of the Company. Moreover, the Audit Committee provided the Executive
Management with these observations and prepared a corrective plan for them. The Committee will follow up the implementation of the corrective plan
during 2018.

15- Recommendation of the Audit Committee on the need to appoint a chief internal auditor in the company in case he does not exist
The Company currently has an internal audit department headed by a deputed manager after the former chief internal auditor’s service expired on
08/10/2017. The Audit Committee is currently interviewing a number of candidates to appoint one of them as a new chief internal auditor for the Internal
Audit Department.

16- Recommendations of the Audit Committee, which have a conflict with the Board of Directors’ decisions or which the Board has refused to
adopt in respect of the nomination of the Company’s external auditor, his dismissal, determination of his fees, evaluation of his performance
or the appointment of the chief internal auditor and the reasons for not adopting them:
The Board of Directors approved the Audit Committee’s recommendation regarding the nomination of the Company’s external auditor for 2017 and the
first quarter of 2018 which has been approved by the General Assembly. There is no conflict with the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

17- Details of the Company’s social contributions, if any
Tawuniya has activated several social responsibility initiatives and has continued to support the Prince Fahad Bin Salman Charity Association for Renal
Failure Patients Care (Kellana), which was launched in 2006 through the free administration of dialysis program implemented by the Association. The
Company organized a recreational trip for orphans of one of the charitable societies on the occasion of the National Day, and organized an open day for
the elderly in the Social Welfare Center, which included recreational and healthy programs as well.
The Company conducted many field visits to patients in the hospitals and to the neighbors to congratulate them on Eid occasions. Social contributions
also included the donation by employees to the Ramadan Ifatr Basket, the winter clothing and Eid Al Adha sacrifice for needy families inside and outside
the Kingdom, as well as organizing the blood donation campaign in cooperation with King Faisal Specialist Hospital in Riyadh. A campaign is also made to
raise awareness of pilgrims during the Hajj on security, safety and health measures.
The Company launched its portal for small and medium enterprises to encourage Saudi entrepreneurs to participate in the projects offered by the
Company, specifically for them and also allows the units of this sector to exchange business viewpoints with them. The first of these projects was adopted
to create an electronic application to raise awareness of safe driving for motorists, especially the young generation. Tawuniya implemented this initiative
in accordance with a new methodology for social responsibility programs that adds an economic dimension to the social aspect and allows the possibility
of supporting specific economic sectors that play a major role in economic development and realizes the Kingdom’s 2030 Vision such as the small and
medium enterprises sector.

Investment Committee Members

Hamood A. Al Twaigery
(former member)

Total

13- Any penalty, punishment , precautionary measure or reserve restriction imposed on the Company by CMA or any supervisory, regulatory or
judicial body, indicating the reasons of the violation, inflicting party and the ways of remedying it and avoiding its occurrence in the future:

Penalty
Fine amounting to
SR 50,0000

Violation reason

Inflicting authority

Remedy method and avoidance of future
occurrence

Not obtaining the approval of the Company’s
General Assembly for a medical insurance
contract for a Board member having an interest
therein.

Capital Market Authority (CMA)

Compliance with taking the approval of the General
Assembly on all contracts and transactions to which
the Board members has an interest.

18- A statement of the dates of the General Assembly meetings of shareholders held during 2017 and the names of the BOD members attended
them

Name
H.E. Mr. Soliman S. A. Al Humayyd

(1) Extraordinary General Meeting

(2) Ordinary General Meeting

21/03/2017

28/12/2017

Attended

Attended

Mr. Waleed A. Al Eissa

Attended

Attended

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki

Attended

Attended

Mr. Abdullah M. Al Fayez

Attended

Attended

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

Attended

Attended

Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al Nowaiser

Attended

Attended

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

He was not a Board member

Attended

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis

He was not a Board member

Attended

Mr. Jaser A. Aljaser

He was not a Board member

Attended

Mr. Ali A. Al Subaihin

Attended

His membership expired

Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery

Attended

His membership expired

54

55

The 2017 Board of Directors’ Report

The 2017 Board of Directors’ Report

19- A description of main lines of business of the Company and its subsidiaries’ business. If two or more lines of business activity are described, a statement
of each activity and its impact on the size of the company’s business and its contribution to the results should be attached:
Description of the Principal Activities
The Company is composed of three strategic business units based on its products and services and has three operating segments divided as follows:

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise
as well as historical performance of the reinsurers, wherever applicable, are
thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements
of the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee before
approving them for exchange of reinsurance business.

1- Medical insurance: providing coverage for healthcare insurance,
2- Motor insurance: providing comprehensive motor vehicles insurance (Al-Shamel) and motor insurance cover towards third party liability.
3- Property and casualty insurance: which includes coverage for property, engineering, marine, aviation, energy and general accidents insurance.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its
obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company remains liable
for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the
reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

In addition, the company is operating the third party liability insurance for foreign vehicles (Manafeth), which is the compulsory for foreign motor vehicles,
it is a joint activity with other motor insurance companies and the profit of this segment is shared with them.

c) Market Risk

The following table shows the results of operating segments and their contribution to the Company’s business for the fiscal year of 2017.
Business Activity

Revenues

Percentage

Medical insurance and Takaful

5,746,778

68%

Motor insurance

1,388,860

17%

Property and casualty insurance

1,083,614

13%

Outpost (Manafeth) insurance

187,417

2%

Total

8,406,669

100%

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may
fluctuate as a result of changes in market commission rates or the market
price of securities or the instrument, change in market sentiments,
speculative activities, supply and demand for securities and liquidity in the
market.
The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the overall market
risk exposure is maintained at prudent levels and is consistent with the
available capital. While the Board gives a strategic direction and goals, risk
management function related to market risk is mainly the responsibility
of Investment Committee team. The team prepares forecasts showing
the effects of various possible changes in market conditions related to
risk exposures. This risk is being mitigated through the proper selection of
securities. Company maintains diversified portfolio and performs regular
monitoring of developments in related markets. In addition, the key factors
that affect stock and sukuk market movements are monitored, including
analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

e) Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet obligations and commitments associated with financial
liabilities. The Company has a proper cash management system, where
daily cash collections and payments are strictly monitored and reconciled
on regular basis. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities and investing in liquid
financial assets.
To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities mentioned
above, the Company holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash
equivalents and investment securities. These assets can be readily sold to
meet liquidity requirements.
f)

Operational Risk:

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a
wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and
infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally
within the Company or externally at the Company’s service providers, and
from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such
as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational
risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

Company name

Main business activity

Revenues

Percentage

Market risk comprises of three types of risk:

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance
limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving
its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary
responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over
operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility
encompasses the controls in the following areas:

Najm Insurance Services Company

Determines the responsibility of parties
involved in motor accidents

260,479

100%

••

••

United Insurance Company

Motor insurance

80,864

100%

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various
functions, roles and responsibilities;

••

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

Waseel Application Services Provider

Information applications and website
development

33,895

100%

Currency Risk: Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company’s transactions are principally in Saudi Arabian Riyals
and US Dollar. Management monitors the fluctuations in currency
exchange rates and acts accordingly and believes that the foreign
currency risk is not significant.

••

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

••

Documentation of controls and procedures;

Commission Rate Risk: The Company invests in securities and has
deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk
to the Company is the risk of changes in commission rates reducing
the overall return on its fixed commission rate bearing securities. The
Commission rate risk is limited by monitoring changes in commission
rates and by investing in floating rate instruments.

••

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced,
and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks
identified;

••

Ethical and business standards; and

••

Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

Other price risks: Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company
limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio
and by actively monitoring the developments in markets.

Senior Management ensures that the Company’s staff has adequate
training and experience and fosters effective communication related to
operational risk management.

Description of the Subsidiary Companies’ main business activities

Note: The revenues of the United Insurance Company were calculated as of 30 November 2017, Waseel’s revenues as of 30 November 2017, and the revenues of Najm as
of 30 September 2017.

••

20- Information on Surrounding Risks Facing the Company (Whether Operational, Financing or Market Risks), and the Risk Management and
Control Policy
a) Insurance Risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting
claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance
liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid being greater than originally estimated and subsequent
development of long-term claims.
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to
be affected across the board by change in any subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by careful
selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.
b) Reinsurance Risk
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements with other
parties for reinsurance purposes. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on treaty and facultative basis with retention limits varying by product lines. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are
presented in the statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.
Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee. The criteria
may be summarized as follows:
•

Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent

•

Reputation of particular reinsurance companies

•

Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

••

d) Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
For all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum
credit risk exposure to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in
the statement of financial position.
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry
factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure.
The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties
thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

g) Competition in the market putting pressure on prices
Pricing is one of the vital factors for capturing the market along with
customer centric services. The products need to be competitively priced
by having effective operations and also monitoring the loss ratios tightly.
h) Maintaining the operating standards in the light of business
expansion
When the business expands, it is a challenge to maintain the operating
standards to differentiate in the market and to retain the clientele.
i)

Changed risk profile of the Company’s business portfolio

Though it is in line with the industry, considering the lion’s share of
Medical portfolio, a small change in the portfolio may have impact on the
Company’s performance.
j)

Flexibility of the Company’s processes and systems

The infrastructure & the processes adopted need to cope up with the
demands of the business growth and changing market practices, otherwise
business may suffer.
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k) Risk Concentration
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class
of business. The major concentration lies in medical segment.
The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple
risks covered in the same geographical location. For flood or earthquake
risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. For fire and property
risk a particular building and neighboring buildings, which could be
affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location.
Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage
are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The
Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and
cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce
such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.
Since the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia, hence, all the
insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.
l)
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q) Changing Regulatory, Legal, and Behavioural environment
affecting the Company performance

21. Summary in a form of table or diagram to the Company’s assets, liabilities and results of its business operations for the last five years
or since its incorporation, whichever is shorter:

This may put the Company at the disadvantageous position due to
additional costs required to incur to meet the requirements.

Comparison of Business Results for the Last Five Financial Years, 2013 – 2017

s)

The Company has conducted effective risk management and handling
processes through the following:
••

Ensuring operations within the Company’s risk appetite by
implementing Risk Appetite Framework

••

Regular monitoring of regulatory solvency position and capital
position as per rating agency capital model

••

Updating the risk profiles of critical entities periodically and
continuous monitoring of the profiles as a part of Control & Risk SelfAssessment

High staff turnover

Besides increasing the cost of recruitment & training, it will adversely
affect the operational efficiency and in turn the customer service.
m) Leakage of sensitive information
Leakage of business sensitive information may put the Company
in disadvantageous position and also may expose the Company to
reputational loss. The Company designed the policies and procedures
which clearly define the sensitive information and how to handle to ensure
information protection and prevent such leakage.

Services outage due to potential attacks

The availability of systems and services may be at risk due cyber-attacks,
virus and malware attacks. To avoid such exposures, the Company
continuously upgrades the effective protective systems that ensure
deterring such attacks and maintain business continuity and unceasing
provision of service.

Gross written premiums

8,407

Total revenues

7,503

Gross claims paid
Total costs and expenses

••

Maintaining the target growth considering the present economic
outlook.

o) Breaching of laws and regulations

••

Meeting the new regulatory requirements.

Breaching the regulations may attract imposition of penalties which
may in turn may affect reputation of the Company. Thus, the Company
endeavours to update its policies and by-laws and implement its
transactions in line with the laws and regulations issued by the regulatory
authorities.

••

Aligning the operations to new information technology trends and
also managing information technology risks.

••

Achieving the strategic objectives initiated by the Company

7,545

6,208

5,605

7,001

5,804

5,005

5,036

6,673

5,328

4,999

4,672

4,759

8,093

6,325

4,342

4,536

5,693

676

462

426

(813)

767

533

469

(657)

(Loss)/ income from shareholders operations

(147)

801

642

602

(564)

Comparison between Assets and Liabilities for the Last Five Years 2013-2017
Description
Assets – insurance operations

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

10,211,815

10,361,822

9,478,721

7,684,918

7,730,472

3,232,421

3,135,733

2,468,506

2,253,588

2,234,870

13,444,236

13,497,555

11,947,227

9,965,342

9,965,342

Liabilities and surplus – insurance operations

10,211,815

10,361,822

9,478,721

7,684,918

7,730,472

Liabilities and equity – shareholders' operations

3,232,421

3,135,733

2,468,506

2,253,588

2,234,870

13,444,236

13,497,555

11,947,227

9,965,342

9,965,342

Review of policies and procedures and aligning them with applicable
legal, regulatory, and control provisions.
Taking into account the following future challenges and risks:

8,055

(590)

Devising required controls to mitigate the identified risks

••

2013

(368)

••

Frauds/Abuse in financial operations, claims operations, sales etc. may
strain the Company’s bottom line. Therefore, the Company designed a set
of appropriate policies and procedures to mitigate the suspicious cases
and detect fraudulent activities.

2014

Operating (deficit)/ surplus

Assets – shareholders' operations

••

2015

(Deficit)/ Surplus from Insurance operations

Monitoring of adequacy of technical reserves, underwriting practices
etc.

••

Geopolitical situations may affect the insurance contracts more
particularly of P&C lines, reinsurance arrangements and also the
investments. However, the Company monitors these situations closely
and designs the appropriate precaution policies.

2016

••

n) Frauds and Financial crimes

p) Geopolitical situations impacting the Company’s insurance
contracts and investments

2017

Description

Total assets

Total liabilities

22. Geographical analysis to the total revenues of the Company and its subsidiaries:
a. Geographical Analysis of Tawuniya Gross Written Premiums in 2017
The Gross Written Premiums had reached SR 8,407 million in 2017, compared to SR 8,055 million in 2016 realizing a growth rate of 4.37%. The Company’s
business is mainly conducted in Saudi Arabia and has acquired all premiums from clients inside the Kingdom. The following table shows the distribution of
gross written premiums in the regions of Saudi Arabia in 2017.
Region

Gross Written Premiums (In SR million)

Central Region

4,827

Western Region

1,870

Eastern Region

1,264

Northern Region

31

Southern Region

30

Head Office

385

Total

8,407

b. Geographical analysis to the total revenues of Associate Companies in 2017

Associate Company

Revenues inside the Kingdom

Revenues outside the Kingdom
(Bahrain)

Total Revenues

United Insurance Company

-

80,864

80,864

Waseel Application Services Provider

33,895

-

33,895

Najm Insurance Services Company

260,479

-

260,479

Note: Revenues of the United Insurance Company as of 30 November 2017, revenues of the Waseel Application Services Provider as of 30 November 2017 and revenues of the
Najm Insurance Services Company as of 30 September 2017.
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23. Clarification of any significant differences in operating results of the previous years or any projections announced by the Company:
SR million

2017

2016

Variable value

Change %

Gross written premiums (GWP)

8,407

8,055

352

4.37%

Net earned premiums (NEP)

7,338

6,841

497

7.27%

Total operating revenues

7,503

7,001

502

7.17%

Gross claims paid

6,673

5,328

1,345

25.24%

Net claims incurred

6,796

5,103

1,693

33.18%

Total costs and expenses

8,097

6,325

1,772

28.02%

Surplus (deficit) from insurance operations less the return on
policyholders' investments (operations results)

(590)

676

(1,266)

(187.28%)

222

91

131

143.96%

(Deficit)/ Surplus from Insurance operations

(368)

767

(1,135)

(147.98%)

Shareholders' appropriation from surplus/ deficit

(368)

690

(1,058)

(153.33%)

227

112

115

102.68%

(Loss)/ income from operations before Zakat

(146)

801

(947)

(118.23%)

Earnings (loss) per share after Zakat (in SR)

(1.17)

6.41

(7.58)

(118.25%)

Description

Policyholders’ Investment income, net

Shareholders' Investment income, net

24. Clarification of any deviation from the accounting standards adopted by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(SOCPA):
As per the request of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA), and effective from 1st of January, 2009 the Company has adapted its financial
statements to be fully compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) instead of those issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified
Public Accountants (SOCPA). With reference to the plan for the transformation to the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the Board
of Directors of the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA) to comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards for the
listed companies as of 01/01/2017, the Capital Market Authority (CMA) has required the companies listed in the market (Tadawul) to apply IFRS on that
date. In this respect, the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority issued the Circular No. 381000074519 dated 14 Rajab 1438H (corresponding to 11 April 2017)
and subsequent amendments through certain clarifications relating to the calculation of Zakat and income tax. The effect of these amendments on Zakat
and income tax is reflected in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity with the same amount entered in the statement of financial position.
Accordingly, the financial information of the Company has been prepared using IAS 34 and SAMA’s instructions to calculate Zakat and income tax. There
is no reservation or attention indicated by the external auditor.

25. The name of each associate company, its capital, the percentage of Tawuniya’s shares acquired, its business activity, its country of
place of business and country of incorporation:
Associate Company
Name

Paid-up Capital

Tawuniya’s Share
Acquired %

Main Business Activity

Country of Place of
Business

Country of
Incorporation

Najm Insurance Services
Company

55,769,320 Saudi Riyal

3.45%

Determining the
responsibility of parties
involved in motor accidents

Saudi Arabia

Saudi Arabia

United Insurance
Company

5,000,000 Bahraini Dinar

50%

Motor insurance

Bahrain

Bahrain

Waseel Application
Services Provider

24,000,000 Saudi Riyal

45%

Information systems and
upgrade of websites

Saudi Arabia

Saudi Arabia

26. Details of shares and debt instruments issued for each associate company:
Company Name

Number of Shares

Debt instruments

Najm Insurance Services Company

5,576,932

There is no debt instrument

United Insurance Company

5,000,000

There is no debt instrument

Waseel Application Services Provider

24,000,000

There is no debt instrument

27. A description of the Company’s dividend distribution policy
The Board of Directors recommends to the General Assembly the proposed distributions, taking into consideration several factors, the most important
of which are:
••

Maintain a rate of at least 100% of the financial solvency required in accordance with the rules of insurance practice.

••

Maintaining a high credit rating commensurate with the Kingdom’s premier credit rating.

••

Maintain an acceptable liquidity rate to meet the operational and expansion requirements.

The dividend distribution mechanism is determined in accordance with Articles 44, 45 and 46 of the Amended Articles of Association of the Company.
Distribution shall be in accordance with the regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority and according to the following rules:
••

Net surplus distribution shall be done by distributing 10% for the insured either directly or by rebate of their following premiums and forwarding of
90% to the Shareholders’ income statement.

The shareholders’ profits consist of the return on the investment of the shareholders’ equity in accordance with the rules established by the Board of
Directors and the shareholders’ share of the net surplus as set out above.

1) Tax and Zakat allocations to be withheld.
2) 20% of the net profits shall be allocated for the formation of a legal reserve. The Ordinary General Assembly may discountince this allocation
if the said reserve amounts reach (100%) of the paid up Capital.
3) The ordinary General Assembly may, in determining the dividend out of the net profits, resolve to create other reserves to the extent that it
serves the interests of the Company or ensures the distribution of fixed profits as much as possible to the Shareholders.

The shareholder shall be entitled to his share in the profits as per the General Assembly resolution issued in this respect; such resolution shall show the
due date and distribution date. Shareholders registered in the Shareholders register shall be eligible to profits at the end of the day specified for eligibility.
The Company shall notify the Capital Market Authority – without delay – about any decision or recommendation for profits distribution. Subject to the
prior written approval of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority, profits to be distributed amongst the Shareholders shall be paid at the place and times
specified by the Board of Directors in accordance with the instructions issued by the competent authority.
The Company distributes annual dividends to Shareholders and no dividends are distributed during the year. The Board of Directors of the Company
recommended not to distribute dividends to the Shareholders of the Company for fiscal year 2017.

Year

Percentage of profits distributed during
2017

Proportion of profits proposed for
distribution at the end of 2017

Total Profits

2017

There is no profit distributed

There is no profit proposed for
distribution

There is no profit

28. A description of interest in the class of voting shares belonging to persons (other than the Company’s Board of directors, senior
executives and their relatives) notified the Company of such rights under Article “45” of the Registration and Listing Rules and any
change in those rights during the financial year 2017:
There have been no changes in the ownership ratios of the major shareholders who own 5% or more which necessitates the shareholders to inform the
Company or the CMA accordingly.

29. A Description of Interest, Contractual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Directors, the Company’s Senior Executives
and their Relatives in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and any Changes in such Interest or
Rights during the Financial Year 2017:
A Description of Interest, Contractual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Directors and their Relatives in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company
Serial Name of person to whom
No. interest is accrued

1

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

2

Waleed A. Aleisa

3

Ghassan A. Al-Malki

4

Beginning of the Year

Closing of the Year

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

Change Ratio

Net Change

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

166,212

--

203,640

--

37,428

22.5%

89

--

111

--

22

25%

0

--

0

--

--

--

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

12,000

--

15,000

--

3,000

25%

5

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

21,000

--

26,250

--

5,250

25%

6

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser

200

--

250

--

50

25%

0

--

1,250

--

1,250

--

7

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

8

Abdulaziz A.Alkhamis

0

--

1,250

--

1,250

--

9

Jaser A. Aljaser

0

--

0

--

--

--

* Includes family ownership.
** The General Assembly approved the granting of one free share against every four shares held.
Accordingly, the percentage of ownership of major shareholders did not change despite the increase in the number of shares given.
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A Description of Interest, Contractual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Senior Executives and their Relatives in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company
Serial Name of person to whom
No. interest is accrued

1

Beginning of the Year

Closing of the Year

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

Net Change

Change Ratio

Abdulaziz H. Al Boug

00

--

00

--

00

--

2

Sultan S. Al Khomashi

00

--

00

--

00

--

3

Abdullah A. Al Arfaj

00

--

00

--

00

--

4

Adel A. Al-Hamoudi

00

--

00

--

00

--

5

Fahad S. Al Moammar

00

--

00

--

00

--

6

Abdul Rahman Al Dokhayel

00

--

00

--

00

--

7

Omer A. Al Mahmoud

00

--

00

--

00

--

8

Mansoor Abuthnein

00

--

00

--

00

--

9

Amro A. Al-Nemri

00

--

00

--

00

--

31. A description of the classes and numbers of any convertible debt instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or similar
rights issued or granted by the Company during the fiscal year 2017, indicating any consideration received by the Company against
this:
Tawuniya declares that there are no convertible debt instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the
Company during 2017, and there is no consideration received by the Company against this.

32. A description of any conversion or subscription rights under any convertible debt instruments, contractual securities, options,
warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company during 2017.
Tawuniya declares that there are no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible debt instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or
similar rights issued or granted by the Company during 2017.

33. A description of any redemption, purchase or cancellation by the Company of any redeemable debt instruments and the amount
of such securities outstanding, distinguishing between the listed securities purchased by the Company and those purchased by its
subsidiaries.
Tawuniya declares that it has not made no redemption, purchase, or cancellation by the Company of any redeemable debt instruments or the amount of
such securities outstanding, whether bought by the Company or its subsidiaries.

A Description of Interest, Contractual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Directors, and their Relatives in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company’s Subsidiaries.
Beginning of the Year

Closing of the Year

34. The number of meetings of the Board of Directors held during 2017, the dates of the meeting, the attendance record of each meeting
and the names of the attendees:

Serial Name of person to whom
No. interest is accrued

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

Net Change

Change Ratio

1

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

00

--

00

--

00

--

2

Waleed A. Aleisa

00

--

00

--

00

--

3

Ghassan A. Al-Malki

00

--

00

--

00

--

4

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

00

--

00

--

00

--

5

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

00

--

00

--

00

--

6

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser

00

--

00

--

00

--

7

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

00

--

00

--

00

--

8

Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis

00

--

00

--

00

--

3rd Meeting

9

Jaser A. Aljaser

00

--

00

--

00

--

12/4/2017

No. of
meetings
1st Meeting
5/2/2017
2nd Meeting
21/3/2017

4th Meeting
A Description of Interest, Contractual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Senior Executives and Their Relatives in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company’s Subsidiaries
Beginning of the Year

26/4/2017
5th Meeting

Closing of the Year

Serial Name of person to whom
No. interest is accrued

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

Net Change

Change Ratio

1

Abdulaziz H. Al Boug

00

--

00

--

00

--

2

Sultan S. Al Khomashi

00

--

00

--

00

--

3

Abdullah A. Al Arfaj

00

--

00

--

00

--

7th Meeting

4

Adel A. Al-Hamoudi

00

--

00

--

00

--

8/11/2017

5

Fahad S. Al Moammar

00

--

00

--

00

--

8th Meeting

6

Abdul Rahman M. Al Dokhayel

00

--

00

--

00

--

12/12/2017

7

Omer A. Al Mahmoud

00

--

00

--

00

--

8

Mansoor Abuthnein

00

--

00

--

00

--

9

Amro A. Al-Nemri

00

--

00

--

00

--

14/6/2017
6th Meeting
13/9/2017

Total

Soliman
Al
Humayyd

Waleed
Aleisa

Saad

Al-Malki

Abdul
Aziz AlNowaiser

Marzoqi

Ali AlSubaihin

Hamood
Twaigery

Abdullah
Al-Fayez

Raeed AlTamim

Abdulaziz
Al-Zaid

Ghassan

Alkhamis

Jaser AlJaser

Abdul Aziz

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

He was
not a
member

8

8

7

7

8

7

8

8

8

1

1

1

35. Number of applications by the company for the Shareholders Register, their dates and reasons
30. Information relating to any loans to the Company (whether payable on demand or otherwise), disclosure of the total indebtedness
of the Company and its subsidiaries, any amounts paid by the Company for the repayment of loans during the year, loan amount,
shares of issuing entity, loan duration and remaining amount:
Tawuniya declares that there are no loans to the Company (whether payable on demand or otherwise).

No. of Application to the Shareholders Register

Application Date

Application Reasons

1

28/2/2017

Corporate procedures

2

23/3/2017

General Assembly

3

20/8/2017

Corporate procedures

4

25/12/2017

Corporate procedures
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36. Description of any transaction between the Company and a related parties

37. Information related to any business or contracts to which the Company is a party, in which there is an interest of for a member of
the Board of Directors of the Company, its senior executives or for any person related to any of them, including the names of the
persons involved in such business or contracts, the nature, terms and condition, duration and amount of such business or contracts.
If there are no business or contracts, the company shall submit a declaration in this regard.

Related party

Relation with the Company

Contract Type

Contract duration

Amount (SR)

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

Chairman

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

20,290,097

- Soliman Al-Humayyd

Chairman

- Waleed A. Aleisa

Director
Director

One Gregorian Year

Name of Company/
related party

- Abdullah Al-Fayez

Policy issuing fees and claims

There is no specific amount for
the contract, but determined as
per transactions

- Abdulaziz H. Alboug

CEO

Waleed A. Aleisa

Director

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

510,241

Al-Faislaih Group

Abdulaziz Al-Nowaiser

Director

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

34,531,102

Jaser Aljaser

Director

Ghassan Al – Malki

Director

Ghassan Al – Malki

Director

- Ghassan Al – Malki

Director

- Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Director

Insurance contracts

Lease contract
Insurance contracts
Service provision contract
Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

One Gregorian Year

One Gregorian Year

One Gregorian Year

12,088,892

100,000

Director

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

132,398,880

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

Director

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

1,489,702

One Gregorian Year

There is no specific amount for
the contract, but determined as
per transactions

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

Director

Insurance contracts

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

Director

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

59,806

Abdulaziz Alkhamis

Director

Insurance contracts

One Gregorian Year

22,141,267

- Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Director

Insurance contracts

- Fahad S. Al- Moammar

SVP-Investment

Claim management fees

- Raeed A. Al-Tamimi

Director

- Abdulaziz H. Alboug

CEO

- Sultan Alkhomashi

SVP-Technical

Insurance contracts
Claim management fees

One Gregorian year

8,439,094

One Gregorian year

795,981

Business/
contract
duration

Business/contract
conditions

Insurance contracts

5,299,627

20,290,097

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

2,323,591

There is no
specific amount
for the contract,
but determined as
per transactions

United Insurance
Company

Raidah Investment
Company (Alraidah)

14,271,890

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

Amount of
business/ contract

Fees of Insurance
policies

480,000
27,978,607

Nature of Business/
Contract

Volume of
transactions
during the year
from 1 January
2017 to 31
December 2017

National Commercial
Bank (NCB)

Qassim Cement
Company

Waseel Application
Services Provider.

Najm Insurance
Services Company.

National Medical Care
Company (CARE) and
its medical centers

Insurance Claims

12,692,649

There is no
specific amount
for the contract,
but determined as
per transactions

Insurance policies

425,190

510,241

Insurance policies

141,041,790

132,398,880

Motor insurance policies

267,616,883

There is no
specific amount
for the contract,
but determined as
per transactions

Insurance Contracts

1,366,688

1,489,702

Insurance Contracts

862,035

795,891

Claims management
fees

17,744,213

There is no
specific amount
for the contract,
but determined as
per transactions

Insurance Contracts

8,894,327

8,439,094

Claims management
fees

46,680,274

There is no
specific amount
for the contract,
but determined as
per transactions

Insurance Contracts

1,778,929

14,271,890

Claims management
fees

Name of stakeholder
(BOD director/ senior executives)

Soliman Al-Humayyd (Chairman)

Soliman Al-Humayyd (Chairman).
One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Waleed A. Aleisa (Vice Chairman)
Abdullah M. Al-Fayez (Director).
Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis (Director).
Abdulaziz H. Al Boug (Tawuinya’s
CEO).

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid (Director)

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid (Director).

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Abdulaziz H. Al Boug (Tawuniya’s
CEO)

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi (Director).

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi (Director).

74,420,869

There is no
specific amount
for the contract,
but determined as
per transactions

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Ghassan A. Al-Malki (Director)

Waleed A. Aleisa (Vice Chairman)
Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis (Director)

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi (Director).

Sultan S. Alkhomashi (SVPTechnical).

Fahad S. Al- Moammar (SVPInvestment).

Ghassan A. Al-Malki (Director).

Insurance Contracts

28,144,937

27,978,607

Service provision
contract

100,000

100,000

The Cooperative Real
Estate Investment
Company (CREIC)

Lease Contract

1,020,102

480,000

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Ghassan A. Al-Malki (Director)

The Public Pension
Agency

Insurance Contracts

19,222

12,088,892

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Jaser Aljaser (Director)

National Petrochemical
Company (Petrochem)

Insurance Contracts

1,628

59,806

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez (Director)

The Saudi Investment
Bank

Insurance Contracts

22,853,192

22,141,267

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

Abdulaziz A. Alkhamis (Director)

Arabian Internet and
Communications
Services Company

Insurance Contracts

40,847,680

34,531,102

One
Gregorian
year

According to SAMA
regulations without
preferential advantages

General Organization
for Social Insurance

Abdulaziz I.
Al-Nowaiser (Director)
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38. A description of any arrangements or agreements, under which a member of the Board of Directors or a senior executive has waived
any remuneration.

46. Deficit from Insurance Operations:

Tawuniya declares that there are no arrangements or agreements, under which any member of the Board of Directors’ or a senior executive has waived any
remuneration.

After the addition of investment income, the insurance operations realized a deficit of SR 368 million in 2017. As per the requirements of the Executive
Regulations of the Law On Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies, the full amount (equivalent to 100% of the deficit of the insurance operations)
was transferred to the shareholders’ income statement. Accordingly, there is no surplus distribution to the policyholders for 2017.

39. A description of any arrangements or agreements, under which any shareholder has waived his rights to profits

47. Board Powers:

Tawuniya declares that there is no arrangements or agreements, under which any shareholder has waived his rights to profits.

With due regard to the prerogatives vested in the General Assembly, the Board of Directors shall have broadest powers in managing the Company to
achieve its objectives. It may also - within the limitations of its discretion - empower either one or more of its members or a third party to perform certain
task(s)- not inconsistent with relevant regulations and regulations. The Board of Directors may , for instance but not limited to, represent the Company in
its relations before the third parties, government and private authorities, all Sharia courts, judicial bodies, Board of Grievances, Labor Offices, preliminary
and supreme committees for the settlement of labor disputes, commercial papers committees, other legal and arbitration committees, Civil Affairs
Departments, police stations, Chambers of Commerce and Industry, private sector entities, commercial banks, companies and establishments, money
houses and all funds, official financing authorities of various names and degrees and other lenders. The Board chairman also has the right to recognize,
demand, defend, plead, sue, assign, compromise, accept and appeal judgments, request arbitration, and enforcement of verdicts, oppose judgments,
receive the enforcement price, discharge the company debtors of their liabilities, enter into bids, sell, purchase, pledge and mortgage real estates.
Moreover, the Board chairman shall have power to enter into contracts, engagements and commitments in the name of the Company and sign on its
behalf on all types of contracts and documents including, for instance but not limited to, the articles of association of the various companies in which the
Company shares along with all their amendments, annexes and amendments decisions and to sign the agreements, legal deeds before the notary public
and official authorities, as well as the agreements of loans, guarantees, bonds and deeds for the selling and purchase of real estate and issuing the legal
powers of attorney on behalf of the company, sell, pledge and mortgage real estate, conveyance and acceptance, to take over and hand over real estate, to
take on lease or hire any real estate, to receive and pay the price, to open accounts, credits, withdrawals, deposit in the banks, issuing guarantees to banks,
funds and government financing institutions and sign all securities and order bonds, cheques, all commercial papers, documents and banking transactions.

40. A description of any statutory payments paid and due for the payment of any Zakat, taxes, fees or other entitlements, which have
not been paid until the end of the annual financial period, with a brief description to them and their reasons
(SR’000)
2017
Description

Paid

Due until the end of financial year
and not paid

Brief Description

Reasons

Zakat

20,784

233,318

Tawuniya’s share of Zakat
payable

Zakat payable pursuant to the
regulations of Zakat and Income Tax
Department.

Tax

10,205

369,015

Withholding tax

Tax payable pursuant to the
regulations of Zakat and Income Tax
Department.

Social insurance

34,910

2,907

GOSI subscriptions for the
company employees.

Payable under the regulations of
the General Organization for Social
Insurance

48. A description of any punishment, penalty or statutory reserve or restriction imposed on any of the Board members by any judicial,
supervisory, or regulatory authority in respect of the Company.

Visas and passport fees

34.8

-

Fees for the issuance of visas and
passport services

Payable under the regulations of the
Ministry of Interior.

Tawuniya declares that there is no punishment, penalty or statutory reserve or restriction imposed on any of the Board members by any judicial,
supervisory, or regulatory authority in respect of the Company.

Labor office fees

58

-

Fees for the issuance of Work
Permits.

Payable under the regulations of the
Ministry of Labor.
Payable under the Law On
Supervision of the Cooperative
Insurance Companies.
Payable under the Cooperative
Health Insurance Law.

Supervision fees

39,309

12,779

To the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority (SAMA).

Supervision fees

58,730

21,264

To the Council of Cooperative
Health Insurance (CCHI).

49. The Capital and Ownership of Company Shares
Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 21, 2017 approved an increase in the Company’s authorized, issued and paid-up capital
by 25% from SR 1,000 million (One Billion Saudi Riyals) to SR 1,250 million (One Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million Saudi Riyals) through capitalization of
SR 250 million of the retained earnings after obtaining the approval of the relevant parties. Thus, the number of shares increased from 100 million shares
to 125 million shares by distributing one bonus share for every four shares owned by shareholders registered in the Company’s records at the end of the
trading day of the General Assembly. This was reflected in the ownership of the company’s shares at the beginning and end of the year as follows:

41. Investment and Reserve Plans Created Interest for Tawuniya Staff:
The Company has a savings plan under which a definite percentage of the employees’ salary is periodically deducted, with Tawuniya investing this amount
through one of the investment funds compatible with the rules of Islamic Shariah. The total number of subscribers at the end of 2017 reached 152
employees with a subscription amounting to SR 4,796,143. The Company continued its home loans plan for its eligible Saudi employees, where the
number of employees granted home loans in year 2017 reached six employees obtained SR 5,699,000.

42. Statements and declarations:
The Company for Cooperative Insurance (Tawuniya) states that:
A.

Proper books of accounts and principles have been maintained.

B.

The system of internal control is sound in design and effectively implemented.

C.

There are no significant doubts concerning the Company’s ability to continue as an ongoing concern.

Owner

No. of Shares
Beginning of the Year

No. of Shares Close of the Year

Change Ratio

Ownership Ratio

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

29,737,685

25%

23.79%

General Organization for
Social Insurance

22,839,445

28,549,306

25%

22.84%

Held by the public

53,370,407

66,713,009

25%

53.37%

Total

100,000,000

125,000,000

25%

100%

50. External Auditors:

43. If the external auditor’s report contains reservations on the annual financial statements, the report of the Board of Directors shall
indicate those reservations, their reasons and any information related to them.
Tawuniya declares that there are no reservations to the annual financial statements included in the external auditor’s report.

44. In the event of recommendation by the Board of Directors to change the external auditor before the end of designated period, the
report must contain this, indicating the reasons for recommending such change
Tawuniya declares that its Board of Directors has not issued any recommendation to change the external auditor before the end of the designated period.

45. Disclosure of treasury shares held by the Company and details of their use:
No. of treasury shares held by
the Company

Shares Amounts

Date of Retaining

Details of their Use

There are no shares

There are no shares

There are no shares

There are no shares

The Extra-Ordinary General Assembly of the Company held on the 21st of March, 2017 agreed with the Audit Committee’s recommendation to enter into
contract with Price Waterhouse Coopers (PWC) and Mohamed Al-Amri & Co. (BDO), as joint external auditors of the Company accounts and financial
statements for the fiscal year 2017 and the First Quarter of year 2018. The BOD did not issue any recommendation to replace the external auditors
approved by the General Assembly during 2017.
Conclusion:
The Board of Directors’ (BOD) expresses its sincere gratitude and appreciation to our esteemed customers for the invaluable confidence . In addition, the
Board expresses its deepest thanks and appreciation to all shareholders.

Our bonds with our partners are strong and based
on solid foundations of honesty and clarity. As such,
we are always committed to disclosing the facts that
reinforce the trust invested in us.

Honesty
Clarity

Disclosure

Facts

TRANSPARENCY
Solid
Trust

Bonds
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS’ OF THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Company for Cooperative Insurance (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus, statements of comprehensive income - insurance and
shareholders’ operations, statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for insurance and shareholders’ operations for the year then ended,
and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes from 1 to 35.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2017, and financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as
modified by Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA”) for the accounting for zakat and income tax.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Overview of Audit
We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we looked
at where the directors made subjective judgments, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of the most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each key audit matter, a description of how our audit addressed the matter is set out below:

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of ultimate claim liabilities arising from insurance contracts
Valuation of ultimate claim liabilities arising from insurance contracts
As at 31 December 2017, gross outstanding claims and reserves including
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) amounted to Saudi Riyals 4.2
billion as compared to Saudi Riyals 3.6 billion as at 31 December 2016.
There was a significant increase in insurance claim liabilities mainly in the
medical segment during the year.
The estimation of ultimate insurance contract liabilities involves a significant
degree of judgments. The liabilities are based on the best-estimate of
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at a given date, whether
reported or not, together with the related claims handling costs.
In particular, estimates of IBNR and the use of actuarial and statistical
projections involve significant judgments and uncertainties relating to
ultimate claim rejections including volatility in the claim patterns making
it difficult to predict future outcomes.
A range of methods such as Chain Ladder Method, Bornhuetter-Ferguson
Method and Expected Loss Ratio Method were used by the actuaries to
determine these provisions. Further, during the year, there were certain
changes in actuarial methods and assumptions used and the actuary used
a segmentation approach including analyzing cost per member per year
for medical line of business. Underlying these methods are a number
of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected settlement
amount and settlement patterns of claims.
We considered this as a key audit matter since use of management
assumptions and judgements could result in material over /
understatement of the Company’s profitability.
Refer to notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements which explain the
valuation methodology used by the Company and critical judgments
and estimates. Also refer note 9 for further details.

We understood, evaluated and tested key controls over the claim liabilities
processes of the Company.
We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s experts by examining their professional qualifications and
experience and assessing their relationship with the entity.
In obtaining sufficient audit evidence to assess the integrity of data
used as inputs into the actuarial valuations, we tested on sample basis,
the completeness and accuracy of underlying claims data utilised by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the IBNR by comparing it to accounting
records.
In order to challenge management’s methodologies and assumptions, we
were assisted by our actuary to understand and evaluate the Company’s
actuarial practices and provisions established. In order to gain comfort
over the actuarial report issued by management’s experts, our actuary
performed the following:

Valuation of available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments comprise a portfolio of debt, equity
securities and investment in mutual funds. The available-for saleinvestments amounted to Saudi Riyals 5.7 billion as at 31 December 2017.
These instruments are measured at fair value with the corresponding fair
value changes recognised in other comprehensive income.
For certain investments, fair value is determined through the application
of valuation techniques which often involve the exercise of judgment by
the management and the use of assumptions and estimates.
Estimation uncertainty exists for those instruments not traded in an active
market and where the significant unobservable valuation inputs use (level
3) is particularly high.
In the Company’s accounting policies, the management has described the
key sources of estimation involved in determining the valuation of level 3
financial instruments.
We considered this as a key audit matter given the degree of complexity
involved in valuing these financial instruments and the significance of the
judgment and estimates made by the management.
Refer to notes 2 and 26 to the financial statements which explain the
valuation methodology used by the Company and critical judgments and
estimates.

We have performed the following procedures to obtain comfort over the
valuation of investments:

••

Evaluated whether the Company’s actuarial methodologies were
consistent with generally accepted actuarial practices and with prior
years. We sought sufficient justification for significant differences
including those for recent trends;

••

Assessed key actuarial assumptions including claims ratios and
expected frequency and severity of claims. We challenged these
assumptions by comparing them with our expectations based on the
Company’s historical experience, current trends and our own industry
knowledge; and

••

Reviewed the appropriateness of the calculation methods and
approach along with the assumptions used and sensitivity analysis
performed.

••

We have performed an assessment of the methodology,
appropriateness of the valuation techniques and inputs used to value
available-for-sale investments, classified under level 3 of fair value
hierarchy;

••

We tested the valuation of available-for-sale investments classified
under level 3 of fair value hierarchy. As part of these audit procedures,
we assessed key inputs used in the valuation such as the pricing data
used, credit spreads, etc.

••

We have also obtained confirmations from external parties to
corroborate the fair value of investments at year end. Where
appropriate, we have also reviewed the valuation reports from external
parties.
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Provision for doubtful receivables
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had receivables of Saudi Riyals 2.4
billion, against which an impairment provision of Saudi Riyals 139 million
was maintained.
We considered this as a key audit matter as the assessment of impairment
requires subjective judgments with respect to the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows. In making this judgment, the Company
evaluates credit risk characteristics that consider past-due status being
indicative of the ability to pay all amounts due as per contractual terms.
For individually significant receivables, the Company also assesses the
impairment individually on a regular basis.
Refer to notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements which explain the
valuation methodology used by the Company and critical judgments
and estimates.

We assessed and tested a sample of controls relating to identified impaired
receivables and also carried-out the following audit procedures:
••

Reviewed the methodology and judgments used and challenged
management’s key assumptions used in assessing impairment
provision;

••

We considered the adequacy of provisions for doubtful receivables
for significant customers, taking into account specific credit
risk assessments for each customer based on time past due, the
existence of any disputes over the balance outstanding, the history
of settlements of receivables and review of correspondence with the
customers;

••

On sample basis checked the completeness and accuracy of the
receivables aging reports by tracing the balances to the source
documents;

••

Considered the consistency of the approach with the prior years, and
enquired about any major variations and changes in key assumptions
and its basis used; and

••

We tested the subsequent collection of receivables post year end.

Other Information included in the Company’s 2017 Annual Report
The Board of Directors of the Company (the Directors) are responsible for the other information. The other information consists of the information
included in the Company’s 2017 annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.
When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance.
Responsibilities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the IFRS as modified by SAMA for the
accounting of zakat and tax, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
••

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

••

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

••

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
Directors;

••

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

••

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

We feel empathy towards our customers under all
circumstances, and promptly respond to all their
needs by developing the appropriate means that
guarantee them an easy access to our services.

Responsiveness

Empathy
Ease

Speed

CARE
Access

Development
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year ended December 31, 2017
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
SAR ’000

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 (continued)
Notes

2017

SAR ’000

2016

Notes

2017

2016

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
ASSETS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Property and equipment, net

Liabilities - Insurance operations:

4

Investment property
Investments in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Due from Shareholder’s operations

5
6
34

279,051

298,406

9,861

9,861

7,021

12,691

2,960,430
773,927

3,155,586
-

Prepaid expenses and other assets

8

208,565

288,221

Deferred policy acquisition costs

9

170,790

218,100

1,766,484

2,118,754

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

9, 10

Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums

9

591,125

553,813

Receivables, net

11

2,257,678

2,326,988

71,739

-

1,115,144

1,379,402

10,211,815

10,361,822

Accrued investment income
Cash and cash equivalents

13

Total assets - Insurance operations

Reserve for discontinued operations

16

Surplus distribution payable
Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

15

Reserve for takaful activities
Gross outstanding claims and reserves

9, 17

1,621

1,621

-

76,651

1,406,894

1,505,968

10,576

12,902

4,212,281

3,592,698

Unearned commission income

9

53,661

54,439

Gross unearned premiums

9

4,405,244

4,390,229

Reinsurers’ balances payable
Due to Shareholders' operations
Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation

15

Total liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations

207,922

178,959

-

539,326

10,298,199

10,352,793

(80,505)

9,029

(5,879)

-

10,211,815

10,361,822

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Shareholders operations liabilities:

ASSETS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS

1,997

1,711

Dividends payable

6,414

6,054

233,318

200,443

125,000
1,997

1,711

Investments in associates

5

88,447

94,958

Available-for-sale investments

6

2,564,779

1,377,991

Murabaha deposits

7

82,035

-

-

539,326

1,750

-

Shareholders’ equity:

86,354

-

Share capital
Legal reserve

Accrued income on statutory deposit

Due from Insurance operations
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued investment income
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets - Shareholders operations
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

13

100,000

Return payable on statutory deposit

12

Statutory deposit

282,059

1,021,747

3,232,421

3,135,733

13,444,236

13,497,555

Zakat

18

4,000

-

773,927

-

1,019,656

208,208

19

1,250,000

1,000,000

20

1,000,000

1,000,000

(85,739)

(71,182)

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to Insurance operations

34

Total liabilities - Shareholders operations

Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments
Retained earnings
Total Shareholders’ equity

48,504

998,707

2,212,765

2,927,525

Total Shareholders operations liabilities and equity

3,232,421

3,135,733

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

13,444,236

13,497,555

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
STATEMENT OF INCOME - INSURANCE OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
SAR ’000

Notes

2017

2016

SAR ’000

REVENUES

8,406,669

Less reinsurance ceded:

9

Changes in unearned premiums, net

(1,091,407)

(981,686)

Other comprehensive income

7,315,262

7,073,449

Not to be recycled back to statement of income in subsequent periods:

22,297

(232,829)

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation

9

7,337,559

6,840,620

Reinsurance commissions

9

113,768

101,935

51,629

58,386

7,502,956

7,000,941

Other income, net
Total revenues

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid

6,672,777

5,327,532

Less reinsurance share:

(848,579)

(343,851)

9

5,824,198

4,983,681

971,853

119,486

Net claims incurred

9

6,796,051

5,103,167

Policy acquisition costs

9

Changes in outstanding claims and reserves, net

492,772

516,898

Excess of loss expenses

40,375

29,867

Changes in reserve for takaful activities

(2,326)

(565)

176,898

133,340

Other underwriting expenses
Manafeth insurance share distribution

21

83,335

106,674

Operating and selling expenses

23

407,151

357,360

Other general and administrative expenses

24

Total costs and expenses

Operating (deficit)/ surplus
Investment income, net

22

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

31

(Deficit)/ Surplus from Insurance operations
Shareholders’ appropriation from (deficit)/ surplus

1

98,435

78,192

8,092,691

6,324,933

(589,735)

676,008

221,549

140,543

-

(50,036)

(368,186)

766,515

368,186

(689,864)

Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation

-

76,651

Distribution of surplus

-

(76,651)

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF THE YEAR

-

-

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2017

2016
-

76,651

15 - 1

(5,879)

-

6

(89,534)

111,978

(95,413)

188,629

8,055,135

Net premiums earned

Net claims paid

Notes

Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation

Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - INSURANCE OPERATIONS

To be recycled back to statement of income in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
SAR ’000

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Notes

2017

1

(368,186)

689,864

22

207,104

114,484

Share of profit from investments in associates, net

5

19,418

19,153

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

31

-

(22,034)

(4,880)

(520)

(146,544)

800,947

Appropriation of (deficit)/ surplus from Insurance operations
Investment income, net

Other expenses, net
(Loss)/ income from operations

6

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year

(14,557)

(14,321)

(161,101)

786,626

(Loss)/ earnings per share:
Weighted average number of shares in issue

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

Legal reserve

1,000,000

883,465

(56,861)

482,464

2,309,068

Balance at January 1, 2016

25

(1,17)

6,41

125,000,000 125,000,000

Retained
earnings

Total

Comprehensive income - restated:

-

-

-

800,947

800,947

6

-

-

(14,321)

-

(14,321)

-

-

(14,321)

800,947

786,626

Transfer to legal reserve

20

-

116,535

-

(116,535)

-

Zakat -restated

18

-

-

-

(68,169)

(68,169)

Dividend distribution

14

-

-

-

(100,000)

(100,000)

Income from operations - restated

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - restated

To be recycled back to statement of income in subsequent periods:

Basic and diluted (loss)/ earnings per share (in SAR)

SAR ’000

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive loss:
Changes in fair value of available for sale investments

Share capital

Fair value
reserve for
availablefor-sale
investments

2016

Balance at December 31, 2016

1,000,000

1,000,000

(71,182)

998,707

2,927,525

Balance at January 1, 2017

1,000,000

1,000,000

(71,182)

998,707

2,927,525

Comprehensive income:

-

-

-

(146,544)

(146,544)

6

-

-

(14,557)

-

(14,557)

-

-

(14,557)

(146,544)

(161,101)

Zakat

18

-

-

-

(53,659)

(53,659)

Issuance of bonus shares

14

250,000

-

-

(250,000)

-

Dividend distribution

14

-

-

-

(500,000)

(500,000)

1,250,000

1,000,000

(85,739)

48,504

2,212,765

Loss from operations
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at December 31, 2017
The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
SAR ’000

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Notes

2017

2016

SAR ’000

Operating activities:

-

76,651

(368,186)

689,864

23,728

17,689

114

204

Adjustments to reconcile surplus from Insurance operations to net cash from/ (used in) operating activities:

4

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Provision/ (reversal) for doubtful debts

11

35,545

(64,386)

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

31

(13,255)

(118,399)

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

31

-

50,036

Share of loss from investment in an associate

5

5,670

526

(316,384)

652,185

Operating surplus before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net (loss)/ income for the year

Appropriation of deficit/ (surplus) from Insurance operations

Prepaid expenses and other assets

79,656

261,770

Deferred policy acquisition costs

47,310

(8,856)

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

352,270

(290,845)

Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums

(37,312)

76,161

33,765

(319,023)

Accrued investment income

(71,739)

-

Reinsurers’ balances payable

28,963

(323,620)

Gross unearned premiums

15,015

156,668

(778)

3,415

619,583

410,331

-

(9,590)

(2,326)

(565)

Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

(104,953)

65,009

Due to Shareholders’ operations

(368,186)

(689,864)

Receivables, net

Unearned commission income
Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Reserve for discontinued operations
Reserve for takaful activities

800,947

368,186

(689,864)

-

22,034

31

Loss/ (gain) on sale of available-for-sale investments

31

1,008

(43,191)

Share of profit from investment in associates, net

5

(20,458)

(20,769)

202,192

69,157

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued investment income

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash (used in)/ from operating activities

-

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

6

(4,219,259)

(5,210,599)

Placement in murabaha deposits
Dividends received from investment in associates

Dividends paid
Zakat paid during the year

(117,000)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(3,397,581)

Dividend received from investment in an associate

5

-

385

Purchase of property and equipment

4

(4,487)

(4,048)

114,390

241,534

Due to Shareholders operations

(1,313,253)

493,000

Net cash (used in) / from financing activity

(1,313,253)

493,000

Net cash from investing activities
Financing activity:

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(264,258)

617,534

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

13

1,379,402

761,868

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

13

1,115,144

1,379,402

6

(89,534)

111,978

Non-cash supplemental information:

(82,035)

-

26,969

6,213

(1,282,419)

813,981

(499,640)

(99,589)

(20,784)

(19,832)

1,313,253

(493,000)

Financing activities:

934,605

(1,497,284)

5

Net cash (used in)/ from investing activities

Net from/ (used in) operating activities

6

(647)

758,374

6,018,367

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

4,000
(250,098)

(25,000)

(16,824)

3,642,778

-

3,016,906

(100,176)

1,616,161

(1,750)

6

(76,651)

6

689,864

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments

Statutory deposit

(1,011,256)

Investing activities:

(86,354)
(368,186)

Investing activities:

Surplus paid to policyholders during the year

Cash from/ (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(146,544)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

Due from Insurance operations

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

2016

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/ income to net cash (used in)/ from operating activities:

Shareholders’ appropriation from (deficit)/ surplus

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments

2017

Operating activities:

Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation

Depreciation

Notes

18

Due from Insurance operations

792,829

(612,421)

(739,688)

959,934

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

13

1,021,747

61,813

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

13

282,059

1,021,747

6

(14,557)

(14,321)

Non-cash supplemental information:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

We keep our promises and are always true to our word.
We’re keen on building bridges of mutual trust so that
we remain your permanent source of security.

Commitment
Loyalty

Security

Build

TRUST
Promise
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As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Company maintains

separate accounts for Insurance and Shareholders operations

December 31,2017

1. GENERAL
The Company for Cooperative Insurance (the “Company”) is a Saudi joint
stock company established in Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by Royal
Decree Number M/5 and incorporated on January 18, 1986 corresponding
to Jumada Awal 8, 1406H under Commercial Registration No. 1010061695.
The Company’s head office is located on Thumamah Road (At Takhassusi)
ArRabi District, P.O. Box 86959, Riyadh 11632, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The purpose of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance
operations and all related activities including reinsurance and agency
activities. Its principal lines of business include medical, motor, marine,
fire, engineering, energy, aviation, takaful and casualty insurance.
On July 31, 2003 corresponding to Jumada Thani 2, 1424H the Law on
the Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies (“Insurance Law”)
was promulgated by Royal Decree Number (M/32). On December 1,
2004 corresponding to Shawwal 18, 1425H, the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority (“SAMA”) as the principal agency responsible for the application
and administration of the Insurance Law and its implementing regulations,
granted the Company a license to transact insurance activities in Saudi Arabia.
The Company conducts the business and advances funds to the insurance
operations as required. On January 20, 2004 the Company amended
its Articles of Association giving authority to the Board of Directors to
determine the disposition of the surplus from insurance operations.
On March 20, 2004, the Board of Directors approved the disposition of the
surplus from insurance operations in accordance with the implementing
regulations issued by the SAMA, whereby the shareholders of the Company
are to receive 90% of the annual surplus from insurance operations and
the policyholders are to receive the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising on
insurance operations is transferred to the shareholders operation in full.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as modified by
Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA) for the accounting of zakat
and income tax, which requires, adoption of all IFRSs as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) except for the
application of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 - “Income Taxes”
and IFRIC 21 - “Levies” so far as these relate to zakat and income tax. As per
the SAMA Circular no. 381000074519 dated April 11, 2017 and subsequent
amendments through certain clarifications relating to the accounting for
zakat and income tax (“SAMA Circular”), the zakat and income tax are to
be accrued on a quarterly basis through shareholders equity under retained
earnings.
Until 2016, the financial statements were prepared in accordance with
IFRS. This change in framework resulted in a change in accounting policy
for zakat [as disclosed in note 3(u)] and the effects of this change are
disclosed in note 18.1 to the financial statements.
The Company presents its statement of financial position in order of
liquidity. As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Company
maintains separate accounts for Insurance and Shareholders operations

and presents the financial statements accordingly

b) Basis of measurement

ii) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Company determines that available-for-sale financial assets are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets below its cost. The
determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment.
A period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged and
a decline of 30% from original cost is considered significant as per
Company policy. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates
among other factors, the normal volatility in share price, the financial
health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis
except for the measurement at fair value of available-for-sale investments
and investment in associates which is accounted for under the equity
method.
c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals
(SAR), which is also the functional currency of the Company. All financial
information presented in Saudi Arabian Riyal has been rounded to the
nearest thousand, except where otherwise indicated.
d) Fiscal year

iii) Impairment of receivables

e) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

iv) Fair value of financial instruments
Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted
prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The fair
value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted
cash flows using commission for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in
preparation of these financial statements:
i)

For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to the
market value of a similar investment or where the fair values cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety
of valuation techniques. The input to these models is taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Please refer
fair value of financial instruments disclosure in note 27.

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts
The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made
under insurance contracts is the Company’s most critical accounting
estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will
ultimately pay for such claims.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is an
estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent
to the date of statement of financial position, for which the insured
event has occurred prior to the date of statement of financial position.
The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the
cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims
settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends. A range
of methods such as Chain Ladder Method, Bornhuetter-Ferguson
Method and Expected Loss Ratio Method are used by the actuaries
to determine these provisions. Actuary had also used a segmentation

The Company has chosen not to early adopt the following new standards
which have been issued but not yet effective for the Company’s accounting
years beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing their
impact. Following is a brief on the new IFRS and amendments to IFRS,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017:
••

IFRS 5 - “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, amended to clarify that changing from one disposal
method to the other would not be considered a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5.

••

IFRS 7 - “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has been amended to
clarify that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute
continuing involvement in a financial asset. The nature of the fee and
the arrangement should be assessed in order to consider whether the
disclosures are required under IFRS 7 and the assessment must be done
retrospectively. IFRS 7 has been further amended to clarify that the
offsetting disclosure requirements do not apply to condensed interim
financial statements, unless such disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the most recent annual report.

••

IAS 19 - “Employee Benefits” - amendment clarifies that market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in
which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the
obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

••

IFRS 9 - “Financial instruments”, In July 2014, the IASB published IFRS 9
Financial Instruments which will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The standard incorporates new
classification and measurements requirements for financial assets, the
introduction of an expected credit loss impairment model which will
replace the incurred loss model of IAS 39, and new hedge accounting
requirements. Under IFRS 9, all financial assets will be measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. The basis of classification will depend
on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. The standard retains most of IAS 39’s requirements
for financial liabilities except for those designated at fair value through
profit or loss whereby that part of the fair value changes attributable to
own credit is to be recognised in other comprehensive income instead
of the income statement.

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable
is impaired.

The Company follows a fiscal year ending December 31.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting year. Although these estimates and judgments are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

arising from financing activities. This amendment is part of the
IASB’s Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial
statement disclosure can be improved. These adoptions have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

approach including analyzing cost per member per year for medical
line of business. Underlying these methods are a number of explicit or
implicit assumptions relating to the expected settlement amount and
settlement patterns of claims.

and presents the financial statements accordingly. Revenues and expenses
clearly attributable to either activity are recorded in the respective
accounts. The basis of allocation of other revenue and expenses from joint
operations is as determined by the management and Board of Directors.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to each of the years presented except for the change
in accounting policy for accounting of zakat and income tax (refer note
18.1) and adoption of the amendments to existing standards mentioned
below which has had no material impact on these financial statements
on the current year or prior years and is expected to have an insignificant
effect in future years:
••

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows on disclosure initiative:
Applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
These amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities

In September 2016, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts that address the accounting consequences of the application of
IFRS 9 to insurers prior to the publication of the forthcoming accounting
standard for insurance contracts. The amendments introduce two options
for insurers: the deferral approach and the overlay approach. The deferral
approach provides an entity, if eligible, with a temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 until the earlier of the effective date of a new insurance
contract standard or 2021.The overlay approach allows an entity to remove
from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that
may occur before the new insurance contracts standard is applied.
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The Company is eligible to apply the deferral approach under the
amendments to IFRS 4. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on the
Company’s financial statements will, to a large extent, have to take into
account the interaction with the forthcoming insurance contracts standard.
IASB through its amendments to IFRS 4 issued in September 2016 had
allowed temporary exemption if a Company meets the following criteria:

Investment income

e) Reinsurance

h) Receivables

Investment income on debt instruments classified under available-forsale investments and murabaha deposits are accounted for on an effective
interest basis.

a)

Dividend income on equity instruments classified under available-for-sale
investments is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
b) Insurance contracts

Reinsurance is distributed between treaty, facultative, stop loss and
excess of loss reinsurance contracts. An asset or liability is recorded in
the statement of financial position - insurance operations’ representing
payments due from reinsurers, the share of losses recoverable from
reinsurers and premiums due to reinsurers. Amounts receivable from
reinsurance is estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability
associated with the insured parties. Reinsurance assets or liabilities are
derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or
when the contract is transferred to another party.

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk.
Insurance contracts are those contracts where the insurer accepts
significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate
the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects
the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence
of an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if
the insured event did not occur.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more
frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting
year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the Company
may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and
when the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the
reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus as
incurred.

Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recognised when due
and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Premiums receivable are stated at gross written
premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an allowance for
any uncollectible amounts. The carrying value of receivable is reviewed
for impairment and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is recorded
in “Other general and administrative expenses” in the statement of income
- insurance operations and accumulated surplus. Receivable balances are
derecognised when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights
that comprise the receivable balance, which is normally the case when the
receivable balance is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the balance
are passed through to an independent third party. Receivables disclosed in
note 11 fall under the scope of IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts”.

c) Claims

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its
obligations to policyholders. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance
are recognised as income and expenses in the same manner as they would
be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account
the product classification of the reinsured business.

The Company has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9; and

b) its activities are predominantly connected with insurance that is
defined as total percentage of carrying amount of insurance liabilities is
greater than 90% of its total liabilities.
The Company believes that IFRS 9 would have an impact on the
classification of financial instruments required to be measured mandatorily
at fair value i.e. Investment in mutual funds currently classified under
available for sale investments. Credit quality of the financial instruments
are disclosed in note 29(d) to the financial statements. At present it is not
possible to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of application of
this new standard as the Company is yet to perform a detailed review.
••

••

••

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” - IFRS 15 will
replace IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and establishes a principle based five-step
model to be applied to all contracts with customers, except for
insurance contracts, financial instruments and lease contracts. IFRS
15 also includes enhanced disclosure requirements. The impact of the
adoption of the new standard is being assessed by the Company and is
not considered significant.
IFRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The new standard eliminates the current dual accounting
model for lessees under IAS 17, which distinguishes between onbalance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases.
Instead, IFRS 16 proposes on-balance sheet accounting model. The
Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard.
IFRS 17 - “Insurance Contracts”, applicable for the period beginning
on or after 1 January 2021, and will supersede IFRS 4 “Insurance
Contracts”. Earlier adoption permitted if both IFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
have also been applied. The Company expects a material impact
on measurement and disclosure of insurance and reinsurance that
will affect both the income statement and the balance sheet. The
Company has decided not to early adopt this new standard.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial
statements are set out below:
a) Revenue Recognition
Recognition of premium and commission revenue
Premiums and commission are recorded in the statement of income –
insurance operations and accumulated surplus based on straight line
method over the insurance policy coverage period except for long term
polices (construction and engineering) and marine cargo. Unearned
premiums are calculated on a straight line method over the insurance
policy coverage except for:
••

Last three months premium at a reporting date is considered as
unearned in respect of marine cargo;

••

Pre-defined calculation for Engineering class of business for risks
undertaken that extend beyond a single year. In accordance with
this calculation, lower premiums are earned in the first year which
gradually increases towards the end of the tenure of the policy; and

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to
the unexpired period of coverage. The change in the provision for unearned
premium is taken to the statement of income of insurance operations and
accumulated surplus in the same order that revenue is recognised over the
period of risk.

Dividend income

Claims consist of amounts payable to policyholders and third parties and
related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries,
and is charged to “Changes in outstanding claims and reserves” in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus as
incurred.
Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims
incurred but not settled at the statement of financial position date
together with related claims handling costs, whether reported by the
insured or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the statement
of financial position date are made on the basis of individual case
estimates. In addition, a provision based on management’s judgment
and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling
claims incurred but not reported including related claims handling costs at
the statement of financial position date.
The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share of
the reinsurers is shown separately. Further, the Company does not discount
its liability for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be
paid within one year of the statement of financial position date.
d) Salvage and subrogation reimbursement
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged)
assets acquired in settling a claim (for example, salvage). The Company
may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all
costs (for example, subrogation).
Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the
measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the asset.
Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the
measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The allowance is the
assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the third party.

f)

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition and
renewal of insurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the terms
of the insurance contracts to which they relate, similar to premiums
earned. All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when
incurred. Amortization is recorded in the “Policy acquisition costs” in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting
estimate.
An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more
frequently when an indication of impairment arises. If the assumptions
relating to future profitability of these policies are not realized, the
amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require
additional impairment write-offs in the statement of income - insurance
operations and accumulated surplus. Deferred policy acquisition costs are
also considered in the liability adequacy test at each reporting date.
g) Liability adequacy test
At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance contracts liabilities
net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these tests
management uses current best estimates of future contractual cash flows
and claims handling and administration expenses. Any deficiency in the
carrying amounts is immediately charged to the statement of income insurance operations and accumulated surplus by establishing a provision
for losses arising from liability adequacy tests accordingly.

i)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets
that are neither classified as held for trading or held to maturity or loans
and receivables, nor are designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Such investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given including transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment and subsequently measured at fair value.
Cumulative changes in fair value of such investments are recognized in
other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive income
- insurance operations or shareholders operations. Realized gains or losses
on sale of these investments are reported in the related statements of
income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus or statement of
comprehensive income - shareholders operations.
Dividend, commission income and foreign currency gain/loss on
available-for-sale investments are recognized in the related statements
of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus or statement
of comprehensive income - shareholders operations, as part of the net
investment income / loss.
Any significant or prolonged decline in fair value of available-for-sale
investments is adjusted for and reported in the related statement of
comprehensive income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus
or statement of comprehensive income - shareholders operations, as
impairment charges.
Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices
for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The fair value of
commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows
using commission for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.
For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to the
market value of a similar investment or where the fair values cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques. The input to these models is taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values.
j)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence
(but not control), over financial and operating policies and which is neither
a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
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Investments in associates are carried in the statement of financial position
at cost, plus post acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets
of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments.
When the company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If there
is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss in the statement of
income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus or statement of
comprehensive income – shareholders operations, as the case may be.
k) De-recognition of financial instruments
The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company
no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the financial
instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold,
or all the cash flows attributable to the instrument are passed through
to an independent third party and the Company has also transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
l)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in
the statement of comprehensive income - shareholders and insurance
operations and accumulated surplus unless required or permitted by any
accounting standard or interpretation.
m) Trade date accounting
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized /
derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require settlement of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
n) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:
••

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

••

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

••

It becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

••

The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties; or

••

Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flow from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the Company,
including:
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••
adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or debtors
in the Company; or
••
national or local economic conditions at the country of the
issuers that correlate with defaults on the assets.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset
exists, the impairment is determined as follows:
For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the significant or
prolong decline in the fair value of the financial asset.
For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is based on
estimated future cash flows that are discounted at the original effective
commission rate.
For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses at each
reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, the
Company assesses individually whether there is an objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence may include indications that the borrower
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in special commission income or principal payments, the probability
that it will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where
observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in economic conditions that
correlate with defaults. However, the amount recorded for impairment is
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognized in the statement of income – insurance operations
and accumulated surplus and statement of comprehensive income shareholders’ operations and. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related
to credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the
statement of income – insurance operations and accumulated surplus
and statement of comprehensive income - shareholders’ operations, the
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income – insurance
operations and accumulated surplus and statement of comprehensive
income - shareholders’ operations.

For equity investments held as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below its cost represents objective evidence of
impairment. The impairment loss cannot be reversed through statement
of income as long as the asset continues to be recognised i.e. any increase
in fair value after impairment has been recorded can only be recognised in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, any cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is included in
the statement of income insurance operations and accumulated surplus
and statement of comprehensive income - shareholders’ operations for
the year.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
judgement. A period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged
and a decline of 30% from original cost is considered significant as per
Company policy. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt instrument is
impaired, the Company considers the factors such as market’s assessment
of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields, rating agencies’

assessment of creditworthiness, country’s ability to access the capital
markets for new debt issuance and probability of debt being restructured,
resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt
forgiveness. The amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of income – insurance operations and accumulated surplus
and statement of comprehensive income - shareholders’ operations.
o) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income
- insurance operations and accumulated surplus during the financial period
in which they are incurred. Land is not depreciated. The cost of other items
of property and equipment is depreciated on the straight line method to
allocate the cost over estimated useful lives, as follows:
Years
Buildings

40-48

Furniture and fixtures

10

Computer equipment

4

Vehicles

4

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate. The carrying values of these assets are
reviewed for impairment when event or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are included in “Other income, net” in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus.
p) Investment property
Investment property represents land that is held for capital appreciation
purposes. Land is stated at cost less recognized impairment loss, if any.
q) Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to statement of income – insurance/
shareholders operations with in operating expenses on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.
r)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example, land – are not
subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

s)

Employees’ end-of-service benefits

The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees
based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws. Accruals are made at the present
value of expected future payments in respect of services provided by
the employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. The benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls
due. Remeasurements (actuarial gains/ losses) as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income – insurance operations.
t)

Provisions, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal
or constructive) arising from past events, and the costs to settle the
obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses. Liabilities are recognised for
amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether
billed by the supplier or not.
u) Zakat
The Company is subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of the
General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”). Zakat is computed on the
Saudi shareholders’ share of equity or net income using the basis defined
under the Zakat regulations. Zakat is accrued on a quarterly basis. Effective
January 1, 2017, based on the Circular issued by SAMA, the Company
amended its accounting policy to charge zakat directly into retained
earnings in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity instead of
income from operations within statement of comprehensive income
- shareholders operations. The effect of change in accounting policy is
explained in note 18.1.
v) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
w) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks
including murabaha deposits with less than three months maturity from the
date of acquisition.
x) Cash flow statement
The Company’s main cash flows are from insurance operations which are
classified as cash flow from operating activities. Cash flows generated from
investing and financing activities are classified accordingly.
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4- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

y) Foreign currencies

bb) Legal reserve

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi Riyals
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position
date. All differences are taken to the statements of income - insurance
operations and accumulated surplus and shareholders’ comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the
date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Foreign
exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are recognized
in “Other income, net” in the statement of income - insurance operations
and accumulated surplus and statement of comprehensive income shareholders operations. As the Company’s foreign currency transactions
are primarily in US dollars, foreign exchange gains and losses are not
significant.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company
shall allocate 20% of its net income from shareholders operations each
year to the legal reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share
capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.

SAR’000

cc) Fair values

Cost:

z)

Operating segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged
in providing products or services (a business segment), which is subject
to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For
management purposes, the Company is organized into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable segments as
follows:
••

Medical - coverage for health insurance.

••

Motor insurance.

••

Property and Casualty - coverage for property, engineering, marine,
aviation, energy and general accidents insurance.

••

Manafeth – third party liability insurance for foreign vehicles and the
profit of this segment is shared with other insurance companies.

Operating segments do not include shareholders operations of the
Company. Income earned from investments is the only revenue generating
activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses
are allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis. The surplus or
loss from the insurance operations is allocated to this segment on an
appropriate basis.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the chief executive officer that makes strategic decisions. No intersegment transactions occurred during the year.

The fair value of financial assets are based on quoted prices for marketable
securities or estimated fair values. The fair value of commission-bearing
items is estimated based on discounted cash flow using commission for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics.
For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined
by reference to the market value of a similar financial assets or where the
fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques. The inputs of this models is taken
from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Land

Buildings

Furniture and
fixtures

Computer
equipment

Capital
Vehicles

work in

Total 2017

Total 2016

459,218

progress

53,036

200,601

63,544

115,243

829

12,934

446,187

Additions

-

-

1,144

2,136

-

1,207

4,487

4,048

Disposals

-

-

(567)

(63)

(373)

-

(1,003)

(17,079)

January 1

-

(675)

1,499

13,317

-

(14,141)

-

-

53,036

199,926

65,620

130,633

456

-

449,671

446,187

January 1

-

15,121

51,470

80,652

538

-

147,781

146,967

Charge for the year

-

4,855

3,860

14,934

79

-

23,728

17,689

Disposals

-

-

(453)

(63)

(373)

-

(889)

(16,875)

December 31

-

19,976

54,877

95,523

244

-

170,620

147,781

December 31, 2017

53,036

179,950

10,743

35,110

212

-

279,051

-

December 31, 2016

53,036

185,480

12,074

34,591

291

12,934

-

298,406

Transfers
December 31
Accumulated
Depreciation:

Net book value

5- INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(i) Insurance Operations:
SAR’000

2017

2016

Balance, January 1

12,691

13,602

Share of loss(Note 22)

(5,670)

(526)

-

(385)

7,021

12,691

Dividends received
Balance, December 31

The Company’s interest in associate, which is unquoted, is as follows along with summarized financial information:

Najm Insurance Services
SAR’000

Country of Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

As of September 30, 2017*
As of September 30, 2016*

% Interest Held

Saudi Arabia

292,010

88,494

260,479

28,063

3.45%

Saudi Arabia

234,704

78,327

239,238

25,954

3.45%

aa) Manafeth shared agreement
As described in note 21, the Manafeth shared agreement is an insurance
pooling arrangement related to motor insurers in KSA. This is an
arrangement between 25 insurance companies of KSA where the entity is
the leader in providing Manafeth (Insurance coverage for motor vehicles
entering in KSA). The entity does not act as an agent on behalf of the other
insurers in agreement. Therefore the Company accounts for manafeth
shared agreement by recording the premiums under the gross written
premium and claims under gross claims paid. The relevant assets and
liabilities are also recorded as a separate operating segment along with
the assets and liabilities of other operating segments. The distribution of
share of income to other participating insurance companies is recorded as
an expense in “Manafeth insurance share distribution” in the statement of
income – insurance operations.

* Based on latest available management accounts.
The Company has significant influence over the financial and operating policy decision of the associate by way of representation on its board of directors.
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(ii) Shareholders Operations:

Movements in available-for-sale investments are as follows:

SAR’000

2017

2016

Balance, January 1

94,958

80,402

Share of profit
Dividends received
Unrealized gain on investments
Balance, December 31

SAR’000

Quoted securities

Unquoted securities

Total

19,418

19,153

As at January 1, 2016

582,916

2,637,526

3,220,442

(26,969)

(6,213)

Purchases

837,724

2,559,857

3,397,581

Disposals

(1,038,095)

(2,604,683)

(3,642,778)

20,083

160,258

180,341

As at December 31, 2016

402,628

2,752,958

3,155,586

As of January 1, 2017

402,628

2,752,958

3,155,586

1,040

1,616

88,447

94,958

Changes in fair value of investments

The Company’s interest in associates, which are unquoted, is as follows along with summarized financial information:
a) United Insurance Company
SAR’000

Country of Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest Held

As of November 30, 2017 *

Bahrain

250,989

111,082

80,864

29,502

50%

As of November 30, 2016 *

Bahrain

235,337

102,594

74,436

28,988

50%

* Based on latest available management accounts.

Purchases

43,806

1,453,478

1,497,284

Disposals

(402,628)

(1,213,533)

(1,616,161)

Changes in fair value of investments

(2,561)

(73,718)

(76,279)

As at December 31, 2017

41,245

2,919,185

2,960,430

The movement of changes in fair value of investments is as follows:

b) Waseel Application Services Provider

2017

2016

Net change in fair value

(76,279)

180,341

(13,255)

(118,399)

-

50,036

(89,534)

111,978

2017

2016

SAR’000
SAR’000

Country of Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest Held

As of November 30, 2017 *

Saudi Arabia

81,744

8,330

33,895

16,973

45%

Net amount transferred to statement of income - insurance operations

As of November 30, 2016 *

Saudi Arabia

68,060

8,850

31,781

15,300

45%

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

* Based on latest available management accounts.

6- AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
i)

ii) Shareholders Operations:

Insurance operations:

Shareholders operations available-for-sale investments comprise the following:

Available-for-sale investments of the insurance operations comprise the following:
SAR’000
Local / regional funds and fixed income investments
Local / regional equity
Foreign equity and equity funds
Foreign funds and fixed income investments
Total

2017

SAR’000

2016

653,225

2,045,601

-

63,564

15,284

-

2,291,921

1,046,421

2,960,430

3,155,586

408,645

1,145,607

-

43,683

Foreign funds and fixed income investments

2,156,134

188,701

Total

2,564,779

1,377,991

Local / regional funds and fixed income investments
Local / regional equity
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8. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

Movements in available-for-sale investments are as follows:
SAR’000

Quoted securities

Unquoted securities

Total

2017

2016

125,240

194,394

SAR’000
Advances to medical service providers and others

As at January 1, 2016

246,636

1,932,287

2,178,923

Prepaid expenses

39,150

46,870

Purchases

547,063

4,663,536

5,210,599

Excess of loss premium deposits

13,653

12,972

Disposals

(748,666)

(5,269,701)

(6,018,367)

Changes in fair value of investments

13,032

(6,196)

6,836

As at December 31, 2016

58,065

1,319,926

1,377,991

As at January 1, 2017

58,065

1,319,926

1,377,991

Purchases

40,007

4,179,252

4,219,259

Disposals

(66,480)

(2,950,426)

(3,016,906)

Changes in fair value of investments
As at December 31, 2017

7,748

(23,313)

(15,565)

39,340

2,525,439

2,564,779

Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to statement of comprehensive income – shareholders’ operations

a) Deferred policy acquisition costs
SAR’000
Balance, January 1
Incurred during the year
Amortized during the year
Balance, December 31

2017

2016

(15,565)

6,836

1,008

(43,191)

-

22,034

(14,557)

(14,321)

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

The available-for-sale investments mainly comprise of mutual funds, sukuks and equities. As at December 31, 2017 the Company has invested an amount
of SAR 2.29 billion from available for sale investments - insurance operations and SAR 2.09 billion from available for sale investments - shareholders’
operations in MENA Islamic Fund SPC (a segregated portfolio company with limited liability) registered in the Cayman Islands. These investments
comprises of money market fund, fixed income fund, public equity fund and mutual funds administered by a company based in Ireland having international
operations. The investment advisor of such investments are authorized financial institutions based in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such investments are
unrated since credit ratings by reputable external agencies were not available at the reporting date.

7.

33,985
288,221

9. MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS, UNEARNED COMMISSION INCOME, UNEARNED PREMIUMS AND
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

The movement of changes in fair value of investments is as follows:
SAR’000

30,522
208,565

Other assets

Balance, January 1
Commission received during the year

2017

2016

Placed during the year

82,035

-

Balance, December 31

82,035

-

209,244
525,754

(492,772)

(516,898)

170,790

218,100

2017

2016

Commission earned during the year

54,439

51,024

112,990

105,350

(113,768)

(101,935)

53,661

54,439

Balance, December 31

c) Unearned premiums
2016

SAR’000
Gross

The movements in murabaha deposits during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, are as follows:

SAR’000

218,100
445,462

SAR’000

2017

Shareholders Operations:

2016

b) Unearned commission income

MURABAHA DEPOSITS

The murabaha deposits are held with commercial banks in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. These murabaha deposits are denominated in Saudi Arabian Riyals
and have an original maturity of more than three months to one year and yield financial incomes at rates 2.25%. (2016: Nil).

2017

Reinsurers’ share

Net

Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Net

Balance, January 1

4,390,229

(553,813)

3,836,416

4,233,561

(629,974)

3,603,587

Premiums written during the year

8,406,669

(1,091,407)

7,315,262

8,055,135

(981,686)

7,073,449

Premiums earned during the year

(8,391,654)

1,054,095

(7,337,559)

(7,898,467)

1,057,847

(6,840,620)

4,405,244

(591,125)

3,814,119

4,390,229

(553,813)

3,836,416

Balance, December 31
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11. RECEIVABLES, NET

d) Outstanding claims and reserves

Receivables comprise net amounts due from the following:
2017

2016

SAR’000

SAR’000

Policyholders
Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Net

Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Net

3,592,698

(2,118,754)

1,473,944

3,190,117

(1,835,659)

1,354,458

(6,672,777)

848,579

(5,824,198)

(5,327,532)

343,851

(4,983,681)

Claims incurred

7,292,360

(496,309)

6,796,051

5,730,113

(626,946)

5,103,167

Balance, December 31

4,212,281

(1,766,484)

2,445,797

3,592,698

(2,118,754)

1,473,944

Outstanding claims

Balance, January 1
Claims paid

2,483,435

(1,375,277)

1,108,158

2,270,201

(1,780,402)

489,799

Salvage and subrogation

(108,671)

-

(108,671)

(123,100)

-

(123,100)

Incurred but not reported claims and other
reserves

1,700,269

(391,207)

1,309,062

1,445,597

(338,352)

1,107,245

137,248

-

137,248

-

-

-

4,212,281

(1,766,484)

2,445,797

3,592,698

(2,118,754)

1,473,944

Premium deficiency reserve
Balance, December 31

As at December 31, 2017, based on the recommendations of external actuary, management had recorded technical reserves (Gross outstanding claims
and reserves) which amounted to SAR 4.2 billion (2016: SAR 3.6 billion). During the year ended December 31, 2017, management had recorded additional
reserves (net of reinsurance) of SAR 971.85 million (2016: SAR 119.48 million) in the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus.
The significant increase in reserves mainly relates to medical line of business amounted to SAR 1,009 million, net of reinsurance and including premium
deficiency reserve, on account of changes in the valuation assumptions considered by the external actuary which are a best-estimate of the expected
ultimate claim trends. Further, based on actuarial recommendation, management recorded a premium deficiency reserve of SAR 137.24 million for medical
line of business which is included in the outstanding claims and reserves. Management has considered the change as a ‘change in accounting estimate’ and
accounted for this prospectively in line with the requirements of the accounting framework.

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims comprise net amounts due from the following:
SAR’000
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
Impairment provision

2017

2016

1,767,968

2,120,276

(1,484)

(1,522)

1,766,484

2,118,754

Substantially all of the amounts due from reinsurers are expected to be received within twelve months of the date of the statement of financial position.
Reinsurers share of outstanding claims are calculated in proportion to the related risk distribution pattern. Reinsurance arrangements are made with
counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor’s ratings methodology and ratings as per other reputable agencies.
Amounts due from reinsurers relating to claims already paid by the Company are included in receivables, net (Note 10).

1,742,599

1,890,619

365,938

318,076

Related parties (Note 26)

155,600

165,494

2,264,137

2,374,189

110,677

32,489

Receivables from reinsurers

22,169

24,070

2,396,983

2,430,748

Provision for doubtful receivables

(139,305)

(103,760)

Receivables, net

2,257,678

2,326,988

2017

2016

103,760

168,146

35,545

(61,208)

-

(3,178)

139,305

103,760

Administrative service plan

Movement in provision for doubtful debts during the year was as follows:

Balance, January 1
Provision/ (reversal) for the year (Note 22)
Write-offs
Balance, December 31

As at December 31, the ageing of receivables is as follows:
Past due but not impaired
SAR’000

10. REINSURERS’ SHARE OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS, NET

2016

Brokers and agents

SAR’000

There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims.
During the quarter three-month period ended December 31, 2017, the management and external actuary had made a detailed assessment of technical
reserves and the various parameters in the valuation of technical liabilities.

2017

Total

Neither
past due nor
impaired

Less than
30 days

31 - 60 days

Past due and impaired

61 - 90 days

91 - 180 days

181 - 360
days

More than
360 days

2017

2,396,983

1,359,793

285,201

118,048

274,843

86,250

179,596

93,252

2016

2,430,748

1,411,972

391,701

358,901

71,025

76,629

28,110

92,410

The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis in order to reduce
the Company’s exposure to bad debts.
Receivables comprise a large number of customers mainly within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and reinsurance companies mainly outside the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Receivables include an amount of SAR 221 million (2016: SAR 51 million) due in foreign currencies, mainly in US dollars. The Company’s terms
of business require amounts to be paid within 30 to 90 days of the date of the transaction. Arrangements with reinsurers normally require settlement within
a certain agreed period.
The five largest customers accounts for 38% (December 31, 2016: 34%) of the premiums receivable as at December 31, 2017.

12. STATUTORY DEPOSIT
In compliance with Article 58 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations of SAMA, the Company had deposited 10% percent of its share capital, amounting
to SAR 125 million in a bank designated by SAMA. The statutory deposit is maintained with the National Commercial Bank and can be withdrawn only with
the consent of SAMA.
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13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

15.1 EMPLOYEE END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

i)

The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws. Accruals are made in accordance with
the actuarial valuation under projected unit credit method while the benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls due.

Insurance operations:

SAR’000

2017

2016

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position and movement in the obligation during the year based on its present value are as follows:

Murabaha deposits

200,133

411,000

15.1.1 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position and movement in the obligation during the year based on its present
value are as follows:

915,011

968,402

1,115,144

1,379,402

Banks balances and cash

SAR’000
Present value of defined benefit obligation

ii) Shareholders operations:

2017
119,242

2017

2016

Murabaha deposits

100,000

905,150

Banks balances and cash

182,059

116,597

282,059

1,021,747

Murabaha deposits are maintained with financial institutions and have a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. These earn
commission at an average rate of 2.2% per annum as at December 31, 2017 (2016: 3.2% per annum).
Bank balances and cash includes call account balance of SAR 188 million (December 31, 2016: SAR 483 million). Both bank balances and murabaha
deposits (including off-balance sheet exposures) are placed with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s ratings
methodology.

98,677

-

-

119,242

98,677

Fair value of plan assets

SAR’000

2016

15.2 Movement of defined benefit obligation
SAR’000

2017

2016

Opening balance

98,677

81,349

Charge to statement of income – insurance operations and accumulated surplus

26,731

27,288

5,879

-

Payment of benefits during the year

(12,045)

(9,960)

Closing balance

119,242

98,677

Charge to statement of comprehensive income – insurance operations

14. INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ SURPLUS AND DIVIDENDS DECLARED
15.3 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Insurance Operations’ surplus
The insurance operations’ invests its surplus funds in investments as disclosed in Notes 5, 6 and 7. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments
at December 31, 2017 are not considered as part of the net surplus available for distribution to policyholders. At the time such investments are sold or
gains and losses are realized, they will be included in the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus.
Dividends declared

SAR’000

2017

2016

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at January 1

98,677

81,349

Current service costs

22,129

24,664

4,602

2,624

On February 15, 2017, corresponding to Jumada Al-Awal 18, 1438H the Company’s Board of Directors proposed to pay cash dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2016 of SAR 5 per share amounting to SAR 500 million (2015: SAR 100 million) to its shareholders.

Financial costs

5,879

-

Further on February 15, 2017, corresponding to Jumada Al-Awal 18, 1438H the Company’s Board of Directors proposed a bonus issue of 25 million shares
of SAR 10 each, amounting to SAR 250 million (2015: null) to its shareholders.

Benefits paid during the year

(12,045)

(9,960)

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at December 31

119,242

98,677

The proposed dividend has been approved by the shareholders at the General Assembly meeting.

15. CLAIMS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
SAR’000

15.4 Principal actuarial assumptions
2017

2016

Payables to policyholders

577,233

685,141

Payable - General Authority of Zakat and Tax

369,015

336,377

Accrued expenses

119,659

134,748

Marketing representative commissions

74,626

98,769

Manafeth share of profit distribution payable

83,335

106,674

119,242

98,677

12,365

12,612

Employee end of service benefits (15.1)
Provision for leave encashment

Actuarial loss from experience adjustments

Employees’ savings plan

25,339

9,605

Other liabilities

26,080

23,365

1,406,894

1,505,968

The following range of significant actuarial assumptions was used by the Company for the valuation of
post-employment benefit liability:
SAR’000
Valuation discount rate
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands

2017

2016

4.6%

3.0%

4.5% - 8.8%

3.9% - 8.8%
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SAR ‘000

15.5 Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions

2011

2016

The impact of changes in sensitivities on present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Accident year

2017

SAR’000

2016

Valuation discount rate

•• Increase by 0.5%
•• Decrease by 0.5%

(4,094)

(3,992)

4,376

4,271

4,326

4,182

(4,086)

(3,950)

Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands

•• Increase by 0.5%
•• Decrease by 0.5%

Earlier

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

5,004,460

Total

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

18,719,531

2,971,986

4,917,107

3,669,909

4,862,126

One year later

18,746,068

3,978,907

5,596,818

4,120,395

5,580,651

Two years later

18,717,890

4,016,792

5,522,532

4,153,516

5,511,904

At the end of accident year

Three years later

18,526,306

4,021,777

Four years later

18,500,906

4,025,411

Five years later

18,488,570

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

18,488,570

4,025,411

5,511,904

4,153,516

5,580,651

5,004,460

42,764,512

(18,309,955)

(3,995,338)

(5,387,195)

(3,890,033)

(4,660,503)

(4,251,287)

(40,494,311)

178,615

30,073

124,709

263,483

920,148

753,173

2,270,201

Liability recognized in statement of financial
position

16. RESERVE FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Salvage and subrogation

The reserve for discontinued operations comprise the following in relation to one of the Company’s divisions which
was discontinued during 1998:

Incurred but not reported claims

(123,100)
--

4,293

5,682

87,051

154,164

1,194,407

2017

SAR ‘000
Outstanding claims
Reserve for losses
Total

2016

1,425

1,425

196

196

1,621

1,621

1,445,597
3,592,698

Outstanding claims and reserves

18. ZAKAT
The current year’s provision is based on the following:
SAR ‘000

2017

2016

Share capital

1,000,000

1,000,000

17. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE

Reserves, opening provisions and other adjustments

1,872,365

1,598,458

The following reflects the cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and incurred but not reported for each successive accident year at
each statement of financial position date, together with the cumulative payments to date. The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of
the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate value of the claims.

Book value of long term assets

(653,677)

(703,074)

2,218,688

1,895,384

(72,324)

831,374

2,146,364

2,726,758

53,659

68,169

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future claims experience and
developments. The IBNR estimate pertains to claims liability for the periods beginning from 2015 onwards whose claim experience has not been fully
developed.
Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.
2017

2012

Accident year

Earlier

2014

2015

2016

2017

4,862,126

5,004,460

5,842,642

6,045,645

21,718,054

4,917,107

3,669,909

One year later

22,696,797

5,596,818

4,120,395

5,580,651

22,543,098

5,522,532

4,153,516

5,615,040

Three years later

22,522,683

5,511,904

4,129,605

Four years later

22,513,981

5,511,828

Five years later

22,505,763

Cumulative payments to date
Liability recognized in statement of financial
position

Total

Premium deficiency reserve
Outstanding claims and reserves

The movement in the zakat provision for the year was as follows:
SAR ‘000
Balance, January 1
Provided during the year

22,505,763

5,511,828

4,129,605

5,615,040

6,045,645

5,842,642

49,650,523

(22,324,301)

(5,399,079)

(3,929,770)

(5,151,135)

(5,675,420)

(4,687,383)

(47,167,088)

181,462

112,749

199,835

463,905

370,225

1,155,259

2,483,435

--

5,049

6,683

102,387

181,323

1,404,827

1,700,269

(108,671)

Salvage and subrogation
Incurred but not reported claims

Zakat due at 2.5%

As the zakat base for the year is higher than the zakatable income, the zakat for the year is calculated at 2.5% on the zakat base for the year.
2013

Two years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims

Zakat base

SAR ‘000

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At the end of accident year

Zakatable income for the year

137,248
4,212,281

2017

2016

200,443

152,106

53,659

68,169

Payments during the year

(20,784)

(19,832)

Balance, December 31

233,318

200,443

Status of Assessments
The Company had filed Zakat returns with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) for the years from 2005 to 2016. In relation to 2005 and 2006,
the final assessments had been finalized and the Company had filed an appeal against the assessments of GAZT which is raised to Board of Grievances.
In relation to 2007 to 2013, GAZT had raised assessments and management had subsequently filed their response. Further, GAZT has yet to commence
its review for the years 2014 and 2016. Based on advice from zakat consultant, appropriate provisions have been made and management believes that
finalization of the above mentioned assessments is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.
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18.1. Change in accounting policy

Shareholding structure of the Company is as below. The shareholders of the Company are subject to zakat.

As a result of the Circular issued by SAMA, the Company amended its accounting policy relating to zakat and income tax and have started to charge
zakat and income tax directly to the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. Previously, zakat and income tax was charged in the statement of
comprehensive income – shareholders’ operations. The Company has accounted for this change in accounting policy relating to zakat and income tax
retrospectively.
The change in the accounting policy has the following impacts on the statements of comprehensive income - shareholders’ operations and changes in
shareholders’ equity. The above change in accounting policy did not have an impact on statements of financial position and cash flows for any of the year
presented.
Statement of comprehensive income – shareholders’ operations for the year ended December 31, 2016
SAR ‘000

As previously stated

Effect of restatement relating
to zakat

As restated

Income from operations before zakat charge

800,947

-

Zakat charge

(68,169)

68,169

-

Income from operations

732,778

68,169

800,947

(14,321)

-

(14,321)

Total comprehensive income

718,457

68,169

786,626

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended December 31, 2016
As previously stated

Effect of restatement relating
to zakat

As restated

Income from operations

732,778

68,169

800,947

Other comprehensive loss

(14,321)

-

(14,321)

Total comprehensive income

718,457

68,169

786,626

-

(68,169)

(68,169)

Zakat charge

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Paid up

SAR’000

No. of Shares

Held by the public

66,713,009

667,130

667,130

Public Pension Agency

29,737,685

297,377

297,377

General Organization for Social Insurance

28,549,306

285,493

285,493

125,000,000

1,250,000

1,250,000

2016
Authorized and issued
SAR’000

Paid up

No. of Shares

Held by the public

53,370,407

533,704

533,704

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

237,901

237,901

General Organization for Social Insurance

22,839,445

228,395

228,395

100,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

20. LEGAL RESERVE
In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and in compliance with Article 70(2)(g) of the Insurance Implementing Regulations issued
by SAMA, the Company is required to allocate 20% of its net income for the year to the legal reserve until it equals the value of share capital. This transfer
is only made at the year end. The legal reserve is not available for distribution to Shareholders until liquidation of the Company.

The basic and diluted earnings per share have been restated for the effects of the change in accounting policy, as mentioned below:
SAR ‘000

Authorized and issued

800,947

Other comprehensive loss

SAR ‘000

2017

EPS as previously reported

Effect of restatement relating
to zakat

EPS as restated

5.86

0.55

6.41

* after effects of bonus issue – refer note 19.

21. MANAFETH SHARED AGREEMENT
On January 13, 2015 together with 25 related insurance companies, the Company signed the Manafeth shared agreement relating to third party liability
motor insurance which is effective from January 1, 2015. The agreement relates to motor insurance for vehicles entering the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The main terms of the above mentioned agreement are as follows:

19. SHARE CAPITAL

••

The Company obtains 15% management fee of the net result of the Manafeth portfolio;

The authorized, issued and paid up capital of the Company is SAR 1.25 billion at December 31, 2017 (2016: SAR 1 billion) consisting of 125 million shares
of SAR 10 each.

••

The Company obtains 4.25% of Manafeth’s gross premiums written to cover the related indirect expenses; and

••

The net result of the Manafeth portfolio after deducting the two above mentioned items is due to be shared equally by the Company and its related
insurers.

A bonus issue of one share for every four shares held was approved by the shareholders in their general assembly meeting held on March 21, 2017. The
bonus shares have been issued to the shareholders effective March 21, 2017. As a result the share capital of the Company has increased to SAR 1.25 billion
comprising of 125 million shares issued.
On February 15, 2017, corresponding to Jumada Al-Awal 18, 1438H the Company’s Board of Directors proposed to pay cash dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2016 of SAR 5 per share amounting to SAR 500 million (2015: SAR 100 million) to its shareholders. The cash dividend was approved by
shareholders in their general assembly meeting held on March 21, 2017.
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22. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET

25. (LOSS)/ EARNINGS PER SHARE

Insurance Operations

Basic and diluted (loss)/ earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the (loss)/ income from operations by 125 million shares to give retroactive
effect of change in share capital as a result of bonus share issue.

SAR’000

2017

2016

Available-for-sale:
Dividend income
Commission income

163,201

4,813

53,212

19,254

13,255

118,399

Investment fees

(2,449)

(1,397)

Share of loss from investment in associate (Note 5)

(5,670)

(526)

221,549

140,543

Realized gain on sale (Note 31)

Investment income, net

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and companies of which they are principal
owners and any other entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are
approved by the Company’s management and Board of Directors. The following are the details of the major related party transactions during the year and
the related balances at December 31:

SAR’000

Shareholders Operations

Major shareholders

Available-for-sale:

Insurance premiums written

Dividend income
Commission income

197,899

23,219

General Organization for Social Insurance - Other services

11,630

50,291

Associates

-

(79)

(1,008)

43,191

Foreign currency exchange loss
Realized (loss)/ gain on sale (Note 31)
Investment fees
Investment income, net

(1,417)

(2,138)

207,104

114,484

2017

2016
364,046

13,831

15,124

Insurance, utilities and maintenance

8,752

10,788

Rent

7,198

6,240

Depreciation

5,139

5,373

Communications

2,617

3,788

531

762

Advertising

Office supplies and printing

1,771

619

Provision/ (reversal) for doubtful receivables (Note 11)

35,545

(61,208)

Others

22,903

11,828

407,151

357,360

Training and education

2017

2016

2017

2016

28,164

33,351

3,631

1,985

100

-

-

-

9,756

41,500

(40)

22,328

46,680

31,199

(7,883)

20,980

Waseel fees paid

17,744

12,780

-

(1,115)

United Insurance Co. fees and claims, net

15,016

8,436

3,393

1,223

480,378

504,682

152,009

141,181

Insurance premium written
Najm fees paid

Insurance premiums written

308,864

Salaries and benefits

Balance receivable / (payable) as at

Entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
related parties

23. OPERATING AND SELLING EXPENSES
SAR’000

Amount of transactions for the year ended

-

8,056

-

(5,125)

1,020

1,662

(56)

-

74,421

69,133

10,216

5,488

Reinsurance transactions
Rent expenses paid
Amount of claims paid to hospitals

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is entitled each year to remuneration up to 10% of the remaining profit
from shareholders operations, as defined, based on a decision by the General Assembly.
Remuneration and compensation of BOD Members and Top Executives
The following table shows the annual salaries, remuneration and allowances obtained by the Board members and five top executives for the year ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
SAR’000

BOD members (Executives)

BOD members (Non-Executive)

2017
Salaries and compensation

-

Allowances

24. OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Top Executives including the CEO
and CFO

-

6,001

858

3,093

Motivational plans

-

-

447

Annual remuneration
End of service indemnities

-

1,800
-

3,627
2,897

Total

-

2,658

16,065

2017

2016

Professional fees

14,505

16,237

Depreciation

18,589

12,316

Insurance, utilities and maintenance

9,499

10,666

Indirect cost charge of Manafeth

7,965

10,015

16,937

8,716

2016

8,386

6,150

Salaries and compensation

-

-

6,180

866

1,874

Allowances

-

762

2,858

1,775

1,414

Motivational plans

-

-

88

Annual remuneration
End of service indemnities

-

1,800
-

3,382
597

Total

-

2,562

13,105

SAR’000

License and other charges
Communications
Rent
Office supplies and printing
Training and education

2,294

978

Others

17,619

9,826

98,435

78,192

During the year, the Company had paid a bonus to the former CEO amounting to SAR 3 million.
SAR’000

BOD members (Executives)

BOD members (Non-Executive)

Top Executives including the CEO
and CFO
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27. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most advantageous)
market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. The fair values of recognised financial instruments are not significantly different from the carrying values
included in the financial statements. The estimated fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices, when available.
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
••

Level 1: quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted unadjusted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

••

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are based on
observable market data.

••

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The valuation of each publicly traded investment is based upon the closing market price of that stock as of the valuation date, less a discount if the security
is restricted. Fair values of private equity investments and mutual funds classified in Level 3 are determined based on the investees’ latest reported net
assets values as at the date of statement of financial position taking into account the fair value of underlying investments by the fund. The fair value of
underlying investments are taken by the fund manager from reliable and third party sources including Reuters, Bloomberg. As at December 31, 2017 the
Company has invested an amount of SAR 2.29 billion from available for sale investments - insurance operations and SAR 2.09 billion from available for
sale investments - shareholders’ operations in MENA Islamic Fund SPC registered in the Cayman Islands (refer note 6). These investments are classified
under level 3, valued based on latest reported net assets values. Fair values of other investments (including sukuks) classified in Level 3 are determined
based on discounted cash flows, which incorporate assumptions regarding an appropriate credit spread. There were no transfers in between levels during
the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
The fair values of murabaha deposits, bank balances and cash and other financial assets in statement of financial position – insurance and shareholders’
operations which are carried at amortized cost, are not significantly different from the carrying values included in the financial statements due to the short
term nature of balances.
Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The table below presents the available-for-sale investments based on the fair value hierarchy:
Total gain or loss recognized in
SAR’000

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total
SAR’000

2017

Balance January 1

Purchases

Statement of
income

Sales

Available-for- sale investments

Mutual funds

25,961

-

2,589,615

2,615,576

Equity shares

15,284

-

-

15,284

-

-

329,570

329,570

41,245

-

2,919,185

2,960,430

Sukuks

Insurance operations

2,448,388

1,546,680

(1,433,630)

162,860

(86,973)

2,637,325

304,570

-

(22,710)

-

-

281,860

2,752,958

1,546,680

(1,456,340)

162,860

(86,973)

2,919,185

Mutual funds

890,076

3,823,681

(2,347,066)

81,053

(22,305)

2,425,439

Sukuks

100,000

-

-

-

-

100,000

Murabaha

329,850

-

(329,850)

-

-

-

1,319,926

3,823,681

(2,676,916)

81,053

(22,305)

2,525,439

4,072,884

5,370,361

(4,133,256)

243,913

(109,278)

5,444,624

Mutual funds
Sukuks

Shareholders

Shareholders operations

39,340

-

2,425,439

2,464,779

-

-

100,000

100,000

39,340

-

2,525,439

2,564,779

80,585

-

5,444,624

5,525,209

Sukuks

Total

Total
SAR’000

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total
Total gain or loss recognized in

2016
Available-for- sale investments
SAR’000

Insurance operations
Mutual funds

339,064

-

2,448,388

2,787,452

Equity shares

63,564

-

-

63,564

-

-

304,570

304,570

402,628

-

2,752,958

3,155,586

Mutual funds

14,382

-

890,076

904,458

Equity shares

Sukuks

43,683

-

-

43,683

Sukuks

-

-

100,000

100,000

Murabaha deposit

-

-

329,850

329,850

58,065

-

1,319,926

1,377,991

460,693

-

4,072,884

4,533,577

Balance January 1

Purchases

Sales

Statement of
income

Other
comprehensive
income

Balance December
31

December 31, 2016
Insurance operations

2,363,652

2,474,857

(2,579,284)

(147,304)

336,467

2,448,388

273,874

85,000

(54,304)

-

-

304,570

2,637,526

2,559,857

(2,633,588)

(147,304)

336,467

2,752,958

1,182,287

321,648

(624,603)

(60,131)

70,875

890,076

Murabaha

650,000

4,341,888

(4,662,038)

-

-

329,850

Sukuks

100,000

-

-

-

-

100,000

1,932,287

4,663,536

(5,286,641)

(60,131)

70,875

1,319,926

4,569,813

7,223,393

(7,920,229)

(207,435)

407,342

4,072,884

Mutual fund
Sukuks

Shareholders operations

Total

Balance December
31

December 31, 2017

Insurance operations

Mutual funds

Other
comprehensive
income

Shareholders
Mutual funds

Total
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Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 investments
SAR’000

Sensitivity factor

For the year ended December 31, 2017
Impact on fair value due to
increase in sensitivity factor

Impact on fair value due to
decrease in sensitivity factor

December 31, 2017

Operating Segments

Motor

Manafeth

Property & casualty

Total

Gross premiums written:

Insurance Operations
Mutual funds

+/- 2% change in NAV per unit

53,684

(53,631)

Sukuks

+/- 10% change in credit spread

33,894

(32,190)

Mutual funds

+/- 2% change in NAV per unit

47,620

(48,446)

Sukuks

+/- 10% change in credit spread

10,000

(10,000)

Shareholders

Compulsory

4,590,137

-

-

-

Non - compulsory

1,156,641

-

-

-

-

Total gross premiums written

5,746,778

1,388,860

187,417

1,083,614

8,406,669

Net premiums written

5,622,726

1,388,862

187,417

116,257

7,315,262

Net premiums earned

5,574,977

1,435,813

200,302

126,467

7,337,559

1,472

4

-

112,292

113,768

(5,745,030)

(970,742)

(43,333)

(36,946)

(6,796,051)

Policy acquisition costs

(232,268)

(177,390)

(32,685)

(50,429)

(492,772)

Excess of loss expenses

-

(22,046)

(2,937)

(15,392)

(40,375)

2,326

-

-

-

2,326

(127,749)

(15,082)

(16,231)

(17,836)

(176,898)

(526,272)

250,557

105,116

118,156

(52,443)

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred

SAR’000

Medical

SAR’000

Sensitivity factor

Impact on fair value due to increase
in sensitivity factor

Impact on fair value due to decrease
in sensitivity factor

Changes in reserve for takaful activities

December 31, 2016

Other underwriting expenses

Insurance Operations

(Loss)/ Income from Insurance
operations

Mutual funds

+/- 2% change in NAV per unit

35,486

(55,842)

Sukuks

+/- 10% change in credit spread

33,162

(28,244)

Mutual funds

+/- 2% change in NAV per unit

16,612

(17,284)

Investment income, net

Murabaha

+/- 5% change in credit spread

16,540

(16,627)

Other income, net

Sukuks

+/- 10% change in credit spread

10,000

(10,000)

Manafeth insurance share distribution

Shareholders

General, administrative, operating and
selling expenses

-

(505,586)
221,549
51,629
(83,335)

(Deficit)/ Surplus from Insurance
operations

(368,186)

28. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process; operating segments have been approved by management in respect of the Company’s activities,
assets and liabilities. Information disclosed in the note is based on current reporting to the chief operating decision maker. Operating segments do not
include shareholders operations of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Segment assets do not include insurance operations’ property and equipment, prepayments and other assets, receivables, net and cash and cash equivalents.
Accordingly, they are included in unallocated assets. Segment liabilities do not include reserve for discontinued operations, surplus distribution payable,
due to shareholders operations, reinsurance balances payable, claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities and fair value reserve for availablefor-sale investments. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated liabilities.

Operating Segments

These unallocated assets and liabilities (including the related charges for provision for doubtful debts on premiums receivable and depreciation on the
property and equipments) are not reported to chief operating decision maker under related segments and are monitored on a centralized basis.

Non - compulsory

Medical

Motor

SAR’000
Manafeth

Property & casualty

Total

Gross premiums written:
Compulsory
Total gross premiums written

4,421,272

-

-

-

809,815

-

-

-

-

5,231,087

1,512,411

235,643

1,075,994

8,055,135

Net premiums written

5,195,999

1,512,411

235,643

129,396

7,073,449

Net premiums earned

4,992,831

1,475,708

233,578

138,503

6,840,620

6,355

31

-

95,549

101,935

(3,996,114)

(1,019,049)

(43,557)

(44,447)

(5,103,167)

Policy acquisition costs

(257,442)

(173,389)

(35,975)

(50,092)

(516,898)

Excess of loss expenses

-

(18,059)

(3,248)

(8,560)

(29,867)

Changes in reserve for takaful
activities

565

-

-

-

565

Other underwriting expenses

(98,458)

(7,781)

(20,756)

(6,345)

(133,340)

647,737

257,461

130,042

124,608

1,159,848

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred

Income from Insurance Operations
General, administrative, operating
and selling expenses

(435,552)

Investment income, net

140,543

Impairment on available-for-sale
investments

(50,036)

Other income, net
Manafeth insurance share distribution
Surplus from Insurance Operations

58,386
(106,674)

766,515
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As at December 31, 2017
Operating Segments

Medical

SAR’000

Motor

Property &
casualty

Manafeth

Total

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with
respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements.

Assets - Insurance operations
Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums

62,909

6

-

528,210

591,125

Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims

53,689

34,740

1,141

1,676,914

1,766,484

Deferred policy acquisition costs

99,636

47,306

1,822

22,026

170,790

Investments (including investment property)

2,977,312

Receivables, net

2,257,678

Unallocated assets

2,448,426

Total assets

10,211,815

Liabilities and surplus - Insurance
operations
Gross unearned premiums

3,084,610

674,011

26,982

619,641

4,405,244

Gross outstanding claims and reserves

1,954,296

376,094

30,417

1,851,474

4,212,281

5,346

1

-

48,314

53,661

10,576

-

-

-

10,576

Unearned commission income
Reserve for takaful activities
Unallocated liabilities and surplus

1,530,053

Total liabilities and surplus

10,211,815

As at December 31, 2016
Operating Segments

Medical

SAR’000

Motor

Property &
casualty

Manafeth

Total

Assets - Insurance operations

6,204

22

-

547,587

553,813

Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims

19,562

18,843

3,213

2,077,136

2,118,754

Deferred policy acquisition costs

117,411

77,369

1,831

21,489

218,100

Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums

3,178,138

Investments (including investment property)

2,326,988

Receivables, net

1,966,029

Unallocated assets
Total assets

Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Unearned commission income
Reserve for takaful activities
Unallocated liabilities and surplus
Total liabilities and surplus

Frequency and severity of claims
The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and economical, atmospheric
disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages these risk through the measures described above. The Company has limited its
exposure to catastrophic and riot events by use of reinsurance arrangements.
Concentration of insurance risk
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in medical segment.
The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For flood or earthquake risk, a
complete city is classified as a single location. For fire and property risk a particular building and neighboring buildings, which could be affected by a single
claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk
while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes
its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.
Since the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia, hence, all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.
Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments
The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether reported or not, and
includes expected claims settlement costs. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from
claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying and possibly significant
degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative
judgments are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public
attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government
legislation affect the estimates.
In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the statement of financial position date and for the expected
ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the statement of financial position date.
Process used to decide on assumptions
The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral reasonable estimates of the
most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and
the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information
available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new
information is available.

10,361,822

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the
Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and
details of reinsurance programs.
The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserve and premium deficiency reserve
in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies as at
the statement of financial position date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the
expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

Liabilities and surplus - Insurance
operations
Gross unearned premiums

Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on treaty and facultative basis with retention limits varying by product lines. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are
presented in the statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.

2,980,156

720,978

39,867

649,228

4,390,229

910,263

398,883

30,657

2,252,895

3,592,698

4,657

6

-

49,776

54,439

12,902

-

-

-

12,902
2,311,554
10,361,822

29. RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Insurance risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting
claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance
liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid being greater than originally estimated and subsequent
development of long-term claims.
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to
be affected across the board by change in any subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by careful
selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Sensitivity analysis
The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate. However, these amounts are not
certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the
various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation
process.
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A hypothetical 10% change in the claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact income from insurance operations as follows;

SAR’000

2017

SAR’000
Surplus from insurance
operations

Shareholders Operations
Saudi Arabian Riyals and GCC currencies
US Dollars

Impact of change in claim ratio by + / - 10%

2017

83,202

21,895

22,052

Manafeth

2,347

2,300

Property and casualty

3,170

3,170

144,265

110,724

Motor

Other currencies

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors
concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee. The criteria may
be summarized as follows:
••

Reputation of particular reinsurance companies

••

Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

572,461

-

-

377,171

-

2,564,779

1,377,991

Commission Rate Risk

In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements with other parties for
reinsurance purposes.

Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent

805,530

The Company’s transactions are principally in Saudi Arabian Riyals and US Dollar. Management monitors the fluctuations in currency exchange rates and
acts accordingly and believes that the foreign currency risk is not significant.

(b) Reinsurance risk

••

97,077
2,090,531

Euros

2016

116,853

Medical

2016

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk to the Company is the risk of changes
in commission rates reducing the overall return on its fixed commission rate bearing securities. The Commission rate risk is limited by monitoring changes
in commission rates and by investing in floating rate instruments.
An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest yields would result in a change in the loss for the year of SAR 3.8 million (2016: SAR 6.9 million).
The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
SAR’000

Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Non-commission
bearing

Total

Insurance Operations
2017

281,860

-

2,678,570

2,960,430

2016

537,947

-

2,617,639

3,155,586

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance of the reinsurers, wherever applicable, are
thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements of the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee before
approving them for exchange of reinsurance business. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, there is no significant concentration of reinsurance balances.

Shareholders Operations

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company remains liable for the portion
of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

2017

100,000

-

2,464,779

2,564,779

2016

431,725

-

946,266

1,377,991

(c) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market commission rates or the market price of
securities or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand for securities and liquidity in the market.
The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the overall market risk exposure is maintained at prudent levels and is consistent with the available
capital. While the Board gives a strategic direction and goals, risk management function related to market risk is mainly the responsibility of Investment
Committee team. The team prepares forecasts showing the effects of various possible changes in market conditions related to risk exposures. This risk is
being mitigated through the proper selection of securities. Company maintains diversified portfolio and performs regular monitoring of developments
in related markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock and sukuk market movements are monitored, including analysis of the operational and
financial performance of investees.
Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission rate risk and other price risk.
Currency Risk

Other Price Risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those
arising from commission rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company’s investments amounting to SAR 80.58 million (2016: SAR 107.25 million) are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainty about
the future value of invested securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio and by actively monitoring the
developments in markets.
The impact of hypothetical change of a 10% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of investments on Company’s profit would be as follows:
SAR’000

Fair value change

Effect on Company’s profit

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

December 31, 2017

+ / - 10%

+/- 7,636

The currency exposures of available-for-sale investments are set out below:

December 31, 2016

+ / - 10%

+ / - 10,725

SAR’000

2017

2016

Insurance Operations
Saudi Arabian Riyals and GCC currencies
US Dollars
Other currencies

612,300

1,658,097

2,291,921

1,497,489

56,209

-

2,960,430

3,155,586

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared is
not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company’s assets of future movements in the value of investments held by the Company. The sensitivity of
level 3 investments is disclosed in note 27.
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(d) Credit Risk

2017

SAR’000

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. For
all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the
statement of financial position.

LIABILITIES - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Reinsurers’ balances payable

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the statement of financial position:

Gross outstanding claims and reserves

2017

SAR’000
ASSETS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13)

1,115,144

1,379,402

Receivables, net

2,257,678

2,326,988

Available-for-sale investments

2,960,430

3,155,586

71,739

-

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims, net

1,766,484

2,118,754

Total

8,171,475

8,980,730

Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

2017

SAR’000
ASSETS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13)
Available-for-sale investments

Total

-

178,959

3,592,698

-

3,592,698

1,621

-

1,621

1,621

-

1,621

10,576

-

10,576

12,902

-

12,902

1,287,652

119,242

1,406,894

1,407,291

98,677

1,505,968

-

-

-

76,651

-

76,651

5,720,052

119,242

5,839,294

5,270,122

98,677

5,368,799

2,501,449

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure
is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. Approximately 99% (2016: approximately 99%) of the Company’s underwriting activities
are carried out in Saudi Arabia. The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse creditworthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk. Also refer Note 11 for details.
(e) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet obligations and commitments associated with financial
liabilities. The Company has a proper cash management system, where daily cash collections and payments are strictly monitored and reconciled on
regular basis. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities and investing in liquid financial
assets.

Total

-

1,377,991

-

-

Murabaha deposits

82,035

82,035

-

-

282,059

-

282,059

1,021,747

-

1,021,747

3,015,227

-

3,015,227

2,399,738

-

2,399,738

2017

SAR’000
LIABILITIES - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS

Concentration of credit risk

More than one
year

-

Total

3,142,224

Less than one
year

1,377,991

-

Total

86,354

1,377,991

101,711

More than one
year

2,564,779

82,035
86,354

Less than one
year

2016

-

2,564,779

126,997

2017

-

Cash and cash equivalents

Statutory deposit (including accrued income)

178,959

4,212,281

86,354

1,021,747

Accrued investment income

207,922

-

2,564,779

282,059

Murabaha deposits

Total

Accrued investment income

Available-for-sale investments

2016

More than one
year

-

SAR’000
ASSETS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS

Less than one
year

Total

207,922

Surplus distribution payable
Total

More than one
year

4,212,281

Reserve for discontinued operations

2016

Reserve for takaful activities

Accrued investment income

Less than one
year

2016

Less than one
year

2016

More than one
year

Total

Less than one
year

More than one
year

Total

Dividends payable

6,414

-

6,414

6,054

-

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

4,000

-

4,000

-

-

-

10,414

-

10,414

6,054

-

6,054

Total

6,054

To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities mentioned above, the Company holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash equivalents and
investment securities. These assets can be readily sold to meet liquidity requirements.
The assets with maturity less than one year are expected to realize as follows:
••

Available for sale investments include investments in mutual funds and sukuks and are held for cash management purposes and expected to be
matured/ settled within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted contractual obligations relating to financial liabilities:

••

Accrued investment income is expected to be realized within 1 to 3 months from statement of financial position’s date.

Maturity Profile

••

Murabaha deposits classified as ‘cash and cash equivalents’ are deposits placed with high credit rating financial institutions with maturity of less
than three months from the date of placement. Other murabaha deposits are expected to be matured within six months from the date of placement.

••

Cash and bank balances are available on demand.

••

Reinsurers share of outstanding claims majorly pertain to property and casualty segment and are generally realized within three to six months based
on settlement of balances with reinsurers.

2017

SAR’000
ASSETS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS

Less than one
year

2016

More than one
year

Total

Less than one
year

More than one
year

Total

Available-for-sale investments

2,960,430

-

2,960,430

3,155,586

-

3,155,586

Receivables, net

2,257,678

-

2,257,678

2,326,988

-

2,326,988

71,739

-

-

-

Accrued investment income

71,739

The liabilities with maturity less than one year are expected to settle as follows:
••

Reinsurers’ balances payable are settled on a quarterly basis as per terms of reinsurance agreements.

••

Majority of gross outstanding claims are expected to settled within two months in accordance with statutory timelines for payment. Property and
casualty policies due to the inherent nature are generally settled within one month from the date of receipt of loss adjustor report.

1,115,144

-

1,115,144

1,379,402

-

1,379,402

••

The claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities are expected to settle within a period of three months from the period end date.

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

1,766,484

-

1,766,484

2,118,754

-

2,118,754

••

Surplus distribution payable is to be settled within six months of annual general meeting in which financial statements are approved.

Total

8,171,475

-

8,171,475

8,980,730

-

8,980,730

Cash and cash equivalents

128

129

Notes to Financial Statements
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(f) Operational Risk

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure
supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at the Company’s service providers, and from external factors
other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment
management behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

a) As of December 31, 2017, the Company had contingencies related to outstanding letters of guarantee amounting to SAR 103 million (2016: SAR 103
million) issued in favor of GAZT related to zakat assessments raised for previous years (Note 18).
b) As of December 31, 2017, outstanding letters of credit amounted to SAR 189 million (2016: SAR 175 million) in relation to performance bond
obligation.
c) The Company, in common with significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The Company based on
independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material impact on the Company’s income or financial
condition.

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving its
investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational
risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:
••

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

••

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

••

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

••

Documentation of controls and procedures;

••

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified;

Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in the current year. These changes were made for better
presentation of balances in the statement of financial position of the Company. The impact of reclassification is not material to the financial statements
and mainly relates to inclusion of murabaha deposits in cash and cash equivalents which were previously presented as a separate line item in the statement
of financial position.

••

Ethical and business standards; and

Statement of financial position – Insurance operations

••

Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

33. RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Senior Management ensures that the Company’s staff has adequate training and experience and fosters effective communication related to operational
risk management.

SAR’000

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Prepaid expenses and other assets

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’ capital requirements of the
markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising paid share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

Amount previously stated

Minimum Capital Requirement of SAR 200 million

••

Premium Solvency Margin

••

Claims Solvency Margin

282,796

Murabaha deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

SAR’000

The solvency margin as at December 31, 2017 is above 100%. Further, the Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements
with sound solvency margin. The capital structure of the Company as at December 31, 2017 consists of paid-up share capital of SAR 1,250 million, legal
reserves of SAR 1,000 million and retained earnings of SAR 48.5 million (December 31, 2016: paid-up share capital of SAR 1,000 million, legal reserves of
SAR 1,000 million and retained earnings of SAR 998.7 million.) in the statement of financial position.

SAR’000

2017

Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets
Realized gain on financial assets, net

Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets
Realized gain on financial assets, net

2,102,745

16,009

2,118,754

411,000

(411,000)

-

968,402

411,000

1,379,402

3,764,943

21,434

3,786,377

Amount reclassified

Amount after
reclassification

Liabilities – Insurance operations
Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

1,500,543

5,425

1,505,968

Gross outstanding claims and reserves

3,577,820

14,878

3,592,698

177,828

1,131

178,959

5,256,191

21,434

5,277,625

Statement of financial position – Shareholders’ operations
13,255

118,399

-

(50,036)

13,255

68,363

(1,008)

43,191

-

(22,034)

(1,008)

21,157

SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Realized gains on available-for-sale financial assets

288,221

2016

INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Realized gains on available-for-sale financial assets

5,425

Amount previously stated

Reinsurers’ balances payable

31. REALIZED GAINS / (LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET

Amount after
reclassification

Assets – Insurance operations

As per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 of the Implementing Insurance Regulations detailing the solvency margin required to be maintained, the
Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the following three methods as per SAMA Implementing Regulations:
••

Amount reclassified

SAR’000

Amount previously stated

Amount reclassified

Amount after
reclassification

Assets – Shareholders’ operations
Murabaha deposits

905,150

(905,150)

-

Cash and cash equivalents

116,597

905,150

1,021,747

1,021,747

-

1,021,747

34. DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS/ DUE TO INSURANCE OPERATIONS
During the year shareholders have absorbed 100% deficit from insurance operations amounting to SAR 368.18 million resulting in due from shareholder operation
and due to insurance operation balance as at December 31, 2017 amounting to SAR 773.9 million in statement of financial position – insurance operations and
shareholders’ operations respectively.

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been been approved by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board of Directors, on Rajab 03, 1439H, corresponding to
March 20, 2018.
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